
From: Samantha Reeser
To: Oliver Cheung
Subject: 850 Seven Hills Ranch Rd-Right of Way Question
Date: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:00:59 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Good morning Oliver,
 
My colleague, Ron McCauley, passed your contact information to me in hopes that you might be
able to assist us with this inquiry. We are conducting an ALTA survey for the parcels located at 850
Seven Hills Ranch Road, APNs’s 172-150-012, 172-080-007, and 173-042-009. One of the
requirements for the survey is to inquire within the local jurisdiction as to whether or not there are
any proposed changes in right of way. The project abuts Walnut Boulevard, North San Carlos Drive,
and Kinross Road. Could you please advise if there are in fact any proposed changes in right of way
along these streets?
 
Thank you,
SAMMIE REESER
Engineer Assistant
BKF ENGINEERS      Delivering Inspired Infrastructure
200 4th Street, Suite 300, Santa Rosa, CA 95401
d 650.482.6355     sreeser@bkf.com     BKF.com

 

We all need to do our part to reduce the spread of COVID-19 in our communities. Our
top priority at BKF is the health and safety of our staff and we have successfully
transitioned all of our employees to a remote work environment. Additionally, our
robust infrastructure allows us to keep our projects moving forward and to continue
being responsive to our work, our deadlines, and our clients. 
We remain available to you via email, phone, and virtual meetings during our normal
business hours. 

Confidentiality Notice: This email (including any attachment) is intended only for the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient,
you are not authorized to intercept, read, print, retain, copy, forward, or disseminate this communication. If you have received this
communication in error, please reply to the sender or call 650-482-6300, and then please delete this message from your inbox as well as
any copies. Thank you, BKF Engineers 2020

mailto:sreeser@bkf.com
mailto:Cheung@walnut-creek.org
http://www.bkf.com/
mailto:sreeser@bkf.com
http://www.bkf.com/
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PRA User

From: Kevin Wilk <KWilk@walnut-creek.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 12:30 PM
To: Eric Zell
Subject: Accepted: Spieker Zoom Meeting w/Kevin Wilk, Walnut Creek

 



From: Nancy Troche
To: Wilson Wendt; Bryan Wenter; Sandra Meyer (meyer@walnut-creek.org); stevem@meyersnave.com;

mmeneses@meyersnave.com
Subject: Conf. Call to Discuss - Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
Start: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 3:00:00 PM
End: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 4:00:00 PM
Location: Dial In: (267) 930-4000 / Passcode 752-420-166
Attachments: 120051811043201414.gif

Untitled attachment 00411.ics

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

 

 <http://www.msrlegal.com>   

MILLER STARR REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and may contain information that is
privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not an intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for
delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you received this e-mail message in error, please immediately notify the sender by replying to this message or by telephone. Thank you.

mailto:nancy.troche@msrlegal.com
mailto:wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:stevem@meyersnave.com
mailto:mmeneses@meyersnave.com
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BEGIN:VCALENDAR

METHOD:REQUEST

PRODID:Microsoft Exchange Server 2010

VERSION:2.0

BEGIN:VTIMEZONE

TZID:Pacific Standard Time

BEGIN:STANDARD

DTSTART:16010101T020000

TZOFFSETFROM:-0700

TZOFFSETTO:-0800

RRULE:FREQ=YEARLY;INTERVAL=1;BYDAY=1SU;BYMONTH=11

END:STANDARD

BEGIN:DAYLIGHT

DTSTART:16010101T020000

TZOFFSETFROM:-0800

TZOFFSETTO:-0700

RRULE:FREQ=YEARLY;INTERVAL=1;BYDAY=2SU;BYMONTH=3

END:DAYLIGHT

END:VTIMEZONE

BEGIN:VEVENT

ORGANIZER;CN=Nancy Troche:mailto:nancy.troche@msrlegal.com

ATTENDEE;ROLE=REQ-PARTICIPANT;PARTSTAT=NEEDS-ACTION;RSVP=TRUE;CN=Wilson Wen

 dt:mailto:wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com

ATTENDEE;ROLE=REQ-PARTICIPANT;PARTSTAT=NEEDS-ACTION;RSVP=TRUE;CN=Bryan Went

 er:mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com

ATTENDEE;ROLE=REQ-PARTICIPANT;PARTSTAT=NEEDS-ACTION;RSVP=TRUE;CN=Sandra Mey

 er (meyer@walnut-creek.org):mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org

ATTENDEE;ROLE=REQ-PARTICIPANT;PARTSTAT=NEEDS-ACTION;RSVP=TRUE;CN=stevem@mey

 ersnave.com:mailto:stevem@meyersnave.com

ATTENDEE;ROLE=REQ-PARTICIPANT;PARTSTAT=NEEDS-ACTION;RSVP=TRUE;CN=mmeneses@m

 eyersnave.com:mailto:mmeneses@meyersnave.com

DESCRIPTION;LANGUAGE=en-US:\n

UID:040000008200E00074C5B7101A82E00800000000708154E8EA2CD601000000000000000

 010000000444E7A018E9BB64A984542BDA6F12F2C

SUMMARY;LANGUAGE=en-US:Conf. Call to Discuss - Irrevocable Offer to Dedicat

 e (Kinross Drive)

DTSTART;TZID=Pacific Standard Time:20200520T150000

DTEND;TZID=Pacific Standard Time:20200520T160000

CLASS:PUBLIC

PRIORITY:5

DTSTAMP:20200518T150408Z

TRANSP:OPAQUE

STATUS:CONFIRMED

SEQUENCE:0

LOCATION;LANGUAGE=en-US:Dial In:  (267) 930-4000  / Passcode 752-420-166

X-MICROSOFT-CDO-APPT-SEQUENCE:0

X-MICROSOFT-CDO-OWNERAPPTID:-1265477660

X-MICROSOFT-CDO-BUSYSTATUS:TENTATIVE

X-MICROSOFT-CDO-INTENDEDSTATUS:BUSY

X-MICROSOFT-CDO-ALLDAYEVENT:FALSE

X-MICROSOFT-CDO-IMPORTANCE:1

X-MICROSOFT-CDO-INSTTYPE:0

X-MICROSOFT-DONOTFORWARDMEETING:FALSE

X-MICROSOFT-DISALLOW-COUNTER:FALSE

X-MICROSOFT-LOCATIONS:[{"DisplayName":"Dial In:  (267) 930-4000  / Passcode

  752-420-166"\,"LocationAnnotation":""\,"LocationUri":""\,"LocationStreet"

 :""\,"LocationCity":""\,"LocationState":""\,"LocationCountry":""\,"Locatio

 nPostalCode":""\,"LocationFullAddress":""}]

BEGIN:VALARM

DESCRIPTION:REMINDER

TRIGGER;RELATED=START:-PT15M

ACTION:DISPLAY

END:VALARM

END:VEVENT

END:VCALENDAR





From: Steve Waymire on behalf of Ana Spinola
To: Heather Ballenger
Subject: FW: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community
Start: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 2:30:00 PM
End: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 3:30:00 PM
Location: Via Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/96023315071?pwd=VFQ1YThnWU1tMTlYd3U5dHNZWTZ6Zz09

 

 

-----Original Appointment-----
From: Ana Spinola <spinola@walnut-creek.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 8:34 AM
To: Ana Spinola; 'Eric Zell'; 'Troy Bourne'; 'dick@loewke.com'; Sandra Meyer; Steve Waymire; Ethan Bindernagel
Cc: 'Cristina Coley'
Subject: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community
When: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 2:30 PM-3:30 PM (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada).
Where: Via Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/96023315071?pwd=VFQ1YThnWU1tMTlYd3U5dHNZWTZ6Zz09

 

Join Zoom Meeting

https://zoom.us/j/96023315071?pwd=VFQ1YThnWU1tMTlYd3U5dHNZWTZ6Zz09 <https://zoom.us/j/96023315071?
pwd=VFQ1YThnWU1tMTlYd3U5dHNZWTZ6Zz09> 

 

Meeting ID: 960 2331 5071

Password: 626411

One tap mobile

+16699006833,,96023315071# US (San Jose)

+13462487799,,96023315071# US (Houston)

 

Dial by your location

        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

        +1 301 715 8592 US

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

        +1 646 876 9923 US (New York)

        +1 253 215 8782 US

Meeting ID: 960 2331 5071

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aeEKwrXNkC <https://zoom.us/u/aeEKwrXNkC> 

 

mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org
mailto:spinola@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Ballenger@walnut-creek.org


From: Soichet, Emmanuelle
To: wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
Cc: eric@zellandassociates.com; Sandra Meyer
Subject: FW: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
Date: Friday, May 22, 2020 2:37:49 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Reimbursement Agreement - Hale Property Spieker.DOCX

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Wilson,
 
It was nice to meet you by phone on Wednesday.  I am re-sending the attached reimbursement
agreement regarding review of the offer of dedication request.  Please have your client sign and
return the agreement to Sandi.  Note that I have cc-ed Eric here, as well, as he requested that Sandi
send him the agreement.
 
I hope everyone has a good weekend.
 
Thanks,
Emma
 
Emmanuelle S. Soichet   
Of Counsel

email    bio     website 
office: 510.808.2000 
Oakland • Los Angeles • Sacramento • San Diego •  Santa Rosa            

Confidentiality Notice:  This email may contain material that is confidential, privileged and/or attorney work product for the sole use of
the intended recipient. Any review, reliance or distribution by others or forwarding without express permission is strictly prohibited. If
you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete all copies.

 
 

From: Soichet, Emmanuelle 
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 11:47 AM
To: bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com; wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
Cc: nancy.troche@msrlegal.com; Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com>
Subject: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
 
Counsel,
 
I work with Steve Mattas in the Walnut Creek City Attorney’s Office.  I understand from Sandi Meyer
that she has spoken with your client, Eric Zell, regarding a reimbursement agreement with the City
to reimburse it for costs related to review of his request.  Attached is a copy of the reimbursement
agreement.  Please have your client execute the agreement today and send a copy back to Sandi.
 
Thanks,

mailto:esoichet@meyersnave.com
mailto:wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
http://www.meyersnave.com/
mailto:esoichet@meyersnave.com
http://www.meyersnave.com/attorney/Emmanuelle-Soichet
http://www.meyersnave.com/
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REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF WALNUT CREEK 

AND SPIEKER SENIOR DEVELOPMENT 





	THIS REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into on this 20th day of May, 2020, by and between the City of Walnut Creek, a municipal corporation, (“City”) and Spieker Senior Development Partners, a private real estate investment and development firm (“Developer”) with respect to the matters hereinafter stated.  

	

	WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the City accept an offer of dedication dated May 18, 1970 related to Subdivision 4006 in the Heather Farms Area.

	

	WHEREAS, the Developer understands and agrees that the decision as to whether to accept the offer of dedication is within the sole discretion of the City Council and the City makes no representations or guarantees that such authorization (or any future authorization related to Developer’s request) will be granted or that consideration of Developer’s request will be added to a City Council agenda, whether in closed or open session.



1.	Reimbursement. 



	Developer agrees to reimburse City for the City for all staff and legal costs the City has incurred and will incur to review to review, consider, and potentially take action on Developer’s request for the City to accept the May 18, 1970 offer of dedication.  



2.	Rates.



Charges for staff and legal time spent processing this request will be based on the Council-approved fee schedule.  



3.	Initial Payment to the City.



Developer shall, concurrently with its execution of this Agreement, pay to City a deposit in the amount of two thousand and five hundred dollars ($2,500), which will be used by City for the initial costs of reviewing the request.  



4.	Reimbursement Payments Processing Procedures. 



City shall submit invoices, not more often than once per month, for any and all costs incurred pursuant to this Agreement.  Developer shall have 30 days from the date of invoice to make the reimbursement payments to the City. 





Signatures on the following page





Developer:

Spieker Senior Development Partners 



_________________________________

By:









City:

CITY OF WALNUT CREEK





__________________________________	

By:



ATTEST:





___________________________________

City Clerk



APPROVED AS TO FORM:			





___________________________________	

City Attorney						



[bookmark: _GoBack]

2803989.1 




Exhibit A

Offer of Dedication




Exhibit B

Fee Schedule




3527013.1 



Emma Soichet
 
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


From: dutyengineer
To: Cathleen Terentieff
Subject: FW: Record Drawings
Date: Monday, September 14, 2020 3:52:34 PM
Attachments: A-VICINITY.pdf

 
 
Oliver Cheung
Engineering Technician II
City of Walnut Creek
cheung@walnut-creek.org
 

From: Mark Harris <mharris@bkf.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 3:24 PM
To: dutyengineer <dutyengineer@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Michael Steele <msteele@bkf.com>
Subject: Record Drawings
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Hello,
 
I hope this finds you well.
 
I am working on the Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project on Seven Hills Ranch Road
and would like to request record drawings for the all utilities in the surrounding area (see the vicinity
map attached). We recently received comments requesting specifics on the connections into the
existing infrastructure. Some general information was provided to us previously but lacked detailed
information about inverts, pipe sizes, materials etc. Can you assist in providing this information for
all utilities in the area shown on the vicinity map?
 
Thanks in advance.
 
MARK HARRIS
Project Engineer
BKF ENGINEERS      Delivering Inspired Infrastructure
1646 N. California Blvd., Suite 400, Walnut Creek, CA 94596
d 925.940.2290     mharris@bkf.com     BKF.com

 
 

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

mailto:dutyengineer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:terentieff@walnut-creek.org
mailto:cheung@walnut-creek.org
http://www.bkf.com/
mailto:mharris@bkf.com
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



From: Wilson Wendt
To: Sandra Meyer
Cc: Troy Bourne; Bryan Wenter; Eric Zell; dick@lowke.com; Nancy Troche
Subject: Fwd: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
Date: Friday, May 15, 2020 1:36:40 PM
Attachments: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive).DOCX

ATT00001.htm
Summary_ Request to City to Execute Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate.DOCX
ATT00002.htm
Final Map and Grant Deed to Summary.pdf
ATT00003.htm

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Here are the draft docs we discussed.  Obviously, this is your call and Steve May have
some other way of terminating the city’s fee interest in the 1’ strip.  I tried to find the most
benign way and Bryan and I would like to talk with you at your convenience.  If you’ll
indicate a time next week that works for you,  I’ll have my assistant set up a call.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

Begin forwarded message:

From: Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Date: May 15, 2020 at 1:10:57 PM PDT
To: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-
iManage.FID1021924]

Here you go.
 
Nancy Troche | Miller Starr Regalia
1331 North California Boulevard, Fifth Floor, Walnut Creek, CA 94596
t: 925.935.9400 | d: 925.941.3238 | f: 925.933.4126
nancy.troche@msrlegal.com | www.msrlegal.com
 

MILLER STARR REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and may contain
information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not an intended recipient, or the
employee or agent responsible for delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,

mailto:wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:BourneT@spk.com
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:dick@lowke.com
mailto:nancy.troche@msrlegal.com
mailto:nancy.troche@msrlegal.com
mailto:wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
blocked::mailto:firstname.lastname@msrlegal.com
http://www.msrlegal.com/
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		RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

AFTER RECORDING MAIL TO:







City of Walnut Creek

City Hall

1666 North Main Street

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Attn: Public Works Dept.



		



		

		Space above this line reserved for recorder’s use
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DRAFT







IRREVOCABLE OFFER TO DEDICATE RIGHT OF WAY

This Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate Right of Way (the “Offer”) is made and entered into this ____ day of ____________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by the CITY OF WALNUT CREEK, a municipal corporation (“City”).

RECITALS

The City is the owner of that certain real property located in the City of Walnut Creek, County of Contra Costa, State of California, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” (the “Right of Way Strip”), which consists of a one (1) foot wide by fifty (50) feet long strip of land located immediately adjacent to the end of Kinross Drive, a public street. The Right of Way Strip was created  as a part of the development of Subdivision 4006, Heather Farms, and it was acquired by the City from the subdivider to ensure that Kinross Drive would not be extended through development of the adjacent property located in unincorporated County of Contra Costa (the “County Property”) and connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road, so as to become a through street which would cause impacts upon residential neighborhoods.

The Right of Way Strip was acquired by the City by a grant deed as required as a condition of approval for Subdivision 4006, approved in May, 1970.  In order for a city to acquire and own real property there must be an underlying public purpose.  The City’s public purpose was then and remains to ensure that Kinross Drive not be extended to create a through public street, extending through the County Property and connecting to Seven Hills Ranch Road, to the detriment of residential areas in the City.

The City General Plan in effect in 1970, reflected the City’s public purpose in acquiring the Right of Way Strip; and, in its list of Local Street Recommendations and Improvements, included the following: 

“Kinross Drive:  Kinross Drive shall not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road.”

The current City General Plan approved in 1989, contains a number of provisions relating to traffic circulation and impacts upon residential neighborhoods. In the Visions and Principles set out in the Introduction, “Principle: Neighborhoods” states the General Plan values identities of neighborhoods and protects the safety, privacy and character of its neighborhoods. Goal 4 in the Transportation Chapter of the General Plan calls for protection of residential neighborhoods from through traffic and its impacts, and Policy 4.2 implements that goal by discouraging through-traffic on local streets and collectors.

It was never intended that the City would retain ownership of the Right of Way Strip but would dedicate it as part of a public street to extend into the County Property when it could be assured that the goals and policies of the General Plan would be satisfied and the City’s residential neighborhoods protected.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City hereby offers covenants and agrees as follows:

Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate:  The City hereby offers and agrees to dedicate as a public street the Right of Way Strip when the conditions set out in Section 2 hereof are satisfied.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Conditions to Offer:  The Offer shall be accepted by the City at such time as the following two (2) conditions and confirmed by the City Manager to have been satisfied:

A restrictive covenant (“Covenant”) is submitted by the owner of the County Property, in favor of the City in recordable form, permanently precluding any future extension of Kinross Drive to connect with Seven Hills Ranch Road, consistent and in conformity with the City General Plan; and

The Covenant unconditionally imposes an obligation on the owner of the County Property, and tall successors, to (a) apply for and obtain an encroachment permit from the City for those future improvements to be completed within the Kinross Drive Right of Way; and (b) identify all such improvements as a part of any future development project submitted to the County for consideration, thereby ensuring that those improvements be evaluated pursuant to  the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).

Offer Not Subject to Further Review Under CEQA:  Any development project to be proposed on the County Property will be subject to the County process for entitlement and will require full and complete environmental review under CEQA, including any construction located in the City right of way for Kinross Drive.  The County will retain full and complete discretion to deny such a project and to require complete mitigation of all impacts.  No further environmental review under CEQA is required for the execution and recordation of this Offer pursuant to the following authorities:

The Offer is Part of An Ongoing Project Approved Before the Enactment of CEQA Pursuant to Guidelines Section 15261:  The City discretionary approval of Subdivision 4006 was done by the Planning Commission in May, 1970, and the grant deed for the Right of Way Strip accepted by the City Council in July, 1970.  This Offer is the culmination of the course of action decided upon by the City with approval of the subdivision.

The Execution and Recordation is a Ministerial Project Exempt From Further Review Pursuant to Guidelines Section 15268:  The approval of the tentative map for Subdivision 4006 was the discretionary approval, conditioned upon taking the steps effected by this Offer to ensure compliance with the General Plan.

The Execution and Recordation of the Offer is Not a Project Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21065 and Guidelines Section 15378:  The approval of the Offer will not cause a direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

Recordation: This Offer shall be recorded in the Official Records of Contra Costa County, California.

Executed as of the Effective Date.

		City:

		CITY OF WALNUT CREEK,

A municipal corporation







By:  								

Name:  							

Its:  								



		Approved as to form and Legality:



					
City Attorney

		










A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

		State of California

		)

		



		County of 			

		)

		







On ____________________, before me, ____________________________, a Notary Public, personally appeared _______________________________, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

		Signature

		

		










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
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SUMMARY:  REQUEST TO CITY TO EXECUTE
IRREVOCABLE OFFER TO DEDICATE RIGHT OF WAY

Subdivision 4006, Heather Farms:

Final Map (attached) was approved May 18, 1970 by the Walnut Creek City Council and filed with the County Recorder on June 11, 1970.  The Final Map created Lot A, a 1’ wide by 50’ long strip at the end of Kinross Drive (the “Right of Way Strip”) as shown on Sheet 7. 

Tentative Map was approved by the Planning Commission in May 1970.  A condition to the approval of the Final Map was the conveyance of the Right of Way Strip, in fee, to the City.

A Grant Deed (attached) was recorded July 24, 1970, conveying the Right of Way Strip to the City. That Grant Deed was accepted by action of the City Council on July 20, 1970.

Public Purpose:  The City had to have a public purpose in acquiring the Right of Way Strip.  That purpose was to ensure future compliance with a policy in the then existing General Plan with the development of the adjoining property in the unincorporated area of the County of Contra Costa (the “County Property”). The General Plan policy involved was contained in the list of Street Recommendations and Improvements:  “Kinross Drive shall not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road.”  The current General Plan, adopted in 1989, in Policy 4.2 carries forward that direction by discouraging through traffic on local streets and collectors that would increase traffic in City residential neighborhoods. 

[bookmark: _GoBack]NOTE:  The City purpose could not have been to control or direct the entitlement processing on the County Property (beyond ensuring that the Public Street, Kinross Drive, was not connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road). That would have been an invalid and illegal public purpose.

Proposed Offer of Dedication:

Completion of Actions Started in 1970:  Since it was never intended by the City to retain ownership of the Right of Way Strip, the Offer provides a way to complete that course of action. When the conditions are satisfied (a covenant recorded by the owner of the County Property, guarantying in perpetuity that Kinross Drive will not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road), then the City will accept the previously recorded offer and create all of the Kinross Drive right of way in the City as a public street. This satisfies the purpose and intent of the City in acquiring the Right of Way Strip.

Approval of Development on County Property:  The land use entitlement processing will be performed by the County and they will have full and complete discretion to deny any project and to fully mitigate all environmental impacts.

No Further CEQA Analysis is Needed for the City to Execute and Record This Offer: 

The Offer is part of an ongoing project approved by the City in May and June 1970, prior to the enactment of CEQA. Guidelines Section 15621.  Nacimiento Regional Water Management Advisory Commission v. County of Monterey (1993) 15 Cal.App.4th 200; Environmental Law Fund, Inc. v. Town of Corte Madera (1975) 49 Cal.App.3d 158.

Execution of the Offer is a ministerial approval exempt pursuant to Guidelines Section 15378; Public Resources Code Section 21080(b)(1).  Sierra Club v. County of Sonoma (2017) 11 Cal.App.5th 11. The only discretionary action involved in Subdivision 4006 approval was the approval of the tentative map by the Planning Commission. The Offer is simply carrying out a previously approved condition of approval that remains to be implemented.

Not a Project. Public Resources Code Section 21065 and Guidelines Section 15378 defines a “project” for which environmental review is required. The execution of the offer is, expressly not a project because it cannot directly or indirectly cause a physical change in the environment.  Nor is it an essential part of a larger project, the development of the County Property. That development will be approved by the County (not the City) and the County retains the right and obligation to analyze all impacts of that development and to deny or fully mitigate for impacts. All the City is doing is ensuring that when the development of the County Property is entitled the General Plan Policy against connecting Kinross Drive to Seven Hills Ranch Road is implemented as intended when Subdivision 4006 was approved.  Save Tara v. City of West Hollywood (2008) 45 Cal.4th 116; Delaware Tetra Technologies, Inc. v. County of San Bernardino (2016) 247 Cal.App.4th 352; Saltonstall v. City of Sacramento (2015) 234 Cal.App.4th 549; Cedar Fair L.P. v. City of Santa Clara (2011) 194 Cal.App.4th 1150; McCloud Citizens v. McCloud Community Services District (2007) 147 Cal.App.4th 181.
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distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you received this e-mail message in error, please immediately notify
the sender by replying to this message or by telephone. Thank you.



From: Wilson Wendt
To: Bryan Wenter
Cc: Sandra Meyer
Subject: Fwd: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 6:13:59 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Bryan,  How about 3:00 on Wed. 5/20  or 8:30 Friday 5/22?    Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

Begin forwarded message:

From: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>
Date: May 17, 2020 at 8:01:53 PM PDT
To: 'Sandra Meyer' <meyer@walnut-creek.org>, Wilson Wendt
<wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Cc: "bournet@spk.com" <bournet@spk.com>, "eric@zellandassociates.com"
<eric@zellandassociates.com>, "dickdick@loewke.com"
<dickdick@loewke.com>, Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) 

That is better for me, thanks.
 
From: Sandra Meyer <meyer@walnut-creek.org> 
Sent: Sunday, May 17, 2020 7:09 PM
To: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Cc: bournet@spk.com; Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>;
eric@zellandassociates.com; dickdick@loewke.com; Nancy Troche
<nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
 
Can we move our call to Wednesday or Friday next week? I’ve got a CC Committee
meeting to prepare for on Monday and a CC meeting on Tuesday evening. I’d also like
to have Steve M on the call. Anytime on Wednesday after 2:00 or Friday morning from
8:30 – 9:30 or between 11:00 and 1:00.
 

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org
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From: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com> 
Sent: Saturday, May 16, 2020 4:49 PM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: bournet@spk.com; Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>;
eric@zellandassociates.com; dickdick@loewke.com; Nancy Troche
<nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Re: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Bryan and I are available at 2:00 Monday.  Nancy will set up the call Monday
morning and send out call in info.  Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 15, 2020, at 4:40 PM, Sandra Meyer <meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

I’d be happy to discuss with you and Bryan next week however I want to
point out some statements in the “Summary Request…” document that
are not accurate (which are highlighted below). Paragraph 4 states:
 

Public Purpose:  The City had to have a public purpose in acquiring
the Right of Way Strip.  That purpose was to ensure future
compliance with a policy in the then existing General Plan with
the development of the adjoining property in the unincorporated
area of the County of Contra Costa (the “County Property”). The
General Plan policy involved was contained in the list of Street
Recommendations and Improvements:  “Kinross Drive shall not be
connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road.”  The current General Plan,
adopted in 1989, in Policy 4.2 carries forward that direction by
discouraging through traffic on local streets and collectors that
would increase traffic in City residential neighborhoods.

 
The General Plan policy regarding Kinross Drive was in the General Plan
adopted in 1989, nineteen years after the Final Map was approved. The
General Plan prior to the 1989 plan was adopted in 1971 (one year after
the approval of the subdivision) but there were no policies in the 1971
General Plan regarding residential streets. I’m assuming that the prior
General Plan that was adopted in 1964 didn’t have any policies regarding
residential streets either (although I haven’t found a copy of that plan).
The City’s current General Plan was adopted in April of 2006.
 
I don’t have a copy of the PC resolution that approved the Tentative Map
in May 1970 so I don’t know if there was a condition to the approval of
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the Final Map for the conveyance of the Right of Way Strip, in fee, to the
City nor can I find a copy of the PC staff report that might explain why the
condition was placed.
 
That being said, I’m available Monday from 2 - 3 and on Tuesday from 2 -
4.
 

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
Sent: Friday, May 15, 2020 1:36 PM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Troy Bourne <BourneT@spk.com>; Bryan Wenter
<bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>; Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>;
dick@lowke.com; Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Fwd: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-
iManage.FID1021924]
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with
caution.

Sandi,  Here are the draft docs we discussed.  Obviously, this is your call
and Steve May have some other way of terminating the city’s fee interest
in the 1’ strip.  I tried to find the most benign way and Bryan and I would
like to talk with you at your convenience.  If you’ll indicate a time next
week that works for you,  I’ll have my assistant set up a call.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

Begin forwarded message:

From: Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Date: May 15, 2020 at 1:10:57 PM PDT
To: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
[IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]

Here you go.
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Nancy Troche | Miller Starr Regalia
1331 North California Boulevard, Fifth Floor, Walnut Creek, CA
94596
t: 925.935.9400 | d: 925.941.3238 | f: 925.933.4126
nancy.troche@msrlegal.com | www.msrlegal.com
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MILLER STARR REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s)
named above and may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under applicable law. If you are not an intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for
delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you received this e-mail message
in error, please immediately notify the sender by replying to this message or by telephone. Thank
you.
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From: Justin Wedel
To: Eric Zell
Cc: John W. Bennison
Subject: Hale Ranch Contact
Date: Thursday, July 9, 2020 11:24:10 AM

Eric,
 
As per our Zoom meeting, I am connecting you with the contact that I was referencing via this email. 
John Bennison, cced on this message, is a long time relator in Walnut Creek and is a leader with the
Walnut Blvd Association.  I believe he would be a great person to reach out to in order to brief on
the plans for Hale Ranch and obtain community feedback on their concerns.
 
If there is anything else you need from me please let me know.
 
Best,
 
Justin Wedel
wedel@walnut-creek.org
(925) 899-2535
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From: Steve Waymire
To: Oliver Cheung; Cathleen Terentieff; "sreeser@bkf.com"
Subject: RE: 850 Seven Hills Ranch Rd-Right of Way Question
Date: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:40:10 AM

Sammie,
 
The potential buyer of this property’s attorneys have been in contact with our City Attorneys
concerning Right of Way.  We will need to work with our legal team to provide an answer to your
questions.  We will be in contact with you once we have a reply.
 
Sincerely
 
 
Steven R. Waymire P.E. 
Assistant Public Works Director
City Engineer 
  
City of Walnut Creek 
1666 North Main Street 
Walnut Creek, CA  94596 
  
925.256.3507 - Office 

 This e-mail from City of Walnut Creek is intended solely for the individual named above. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender and delete it
immediately. 

P Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Oliver Cheung 
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:03 AM
To: Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-creek.org>; Cathleen Terentieff <terentieff@walnut-
creek.org>
Subject: FW: 850 Seven Hills Ranch Rd-Right of Way Question
 
How should I respond to this e-mail?  This is the Hale property.
 
Oliver Cheung
Engineering Technician II
City of Walnut Creek
cheung@walnut-creek.org
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From: Samantha Reeser <sreeser@bkf.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:01 AM
To: Oliver Cheung <Cheung@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: 850 Seven Hills Ranch Rd-Right of Way Question
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Good morning Oliver,
 
My colleague, Ron McCauley, passed your contact information to me in hopes that you might be
able to assist us with this inquiry. We are conducting an ALTA survey for the parcels located at 850
Seven Hills Ranch Road, APNs’s 172-150-012, 172-080-007, and 173-042-009. One of the
requirements for the survey is to inquire within the local jurisdiction as to whether or not there are
any proposed changes in right of way. The project abuts Walnut Boulevard, North San Carlos Drive,
and Kinross Road. Could you please advise if there are in fact any proposed changes in right of way
along these streets?
 
Thank you,
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
To: Steve Waymire; Oliver Cheung; Cathleen Terentieff
Subject: RE: 850 Seven Hills Ranch Rd-Right of Way Question
Date: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:42:48 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thank you, Steven.
 
SAMMIE REESER
Engineer Assistant
BKF ENGINEERS      Delivering Inspired Infrastructure
200 4th Street, Suite 300, Santa Rosa, CA 95401
d 650.482.6355     sreeser@bkf.com     BKF.com

 

From: Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-creek.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:40 AM
To: Oliver Cheung <Cheung@walnut-creek.org>; Cathleen Terentieff <terentieff@walnut-creek.org>;
Samantha Reeser <sreeser@bkf.com>
Subject: RE: 850 Seven Hills Ranch Rd-Right of Way Question
 
Sammie,
 
The potential buyer of this property’s attorneys have been in contact with our City Attorneys
concerning Right of Way.  We will need to work with our legal team to provide an answer to your
questions.  We will be in contact with you once we have a reply.
 
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

P Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
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From: Oliver Cheung 
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:03 AM
To: Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-creek.org>; Cathleen Terentieff <terentieff@walnut-
creek.org>
Subject: FW: 850 Seven Hills Ranch Rd-Right of Way Question
 
How should I respond to this e-mail?  This is the Hale property.
 
Oliver Cheung
Engineering Technician II
City of Walnut Creek
cheung@walnut-creek.org
 

From: Samantha Reeser <sreeser@bkf.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 10:01 AM
To: Oliver Cheung <Cheung@walnut-creek.org>
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



From: dick@loewke.com
To: "Eric Zell"; Meyer@walnut-creek.org; bindernagel@walnut-creek.org; Steve Waymire
Cc: spinola@walnut-creek.org; "Cristina Coley"; "Troy Bourne"; mike@loewke.com
Subject: RE: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community
Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 8:11:25 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thanks Eric and hello Sandra.  I am available the same times as Eric, except that on Friday
I am only available between 8:00 AM and 10:00 AM.   
 
Thanks, Dick Loewke
 
Loewke Planning Associates, Inc.
925.679.4850 | Loewke.com
CBRE Broker #01933504

 
From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> 
Sent: Monday, April 20, 2020 8:47 PM
To: Meyer@walnut-creek.org; bindernagel@walnut-creek.org; waymire@walnut-creek.org
Cc: spinola@walnut-creek.org; Cristina Coley <cristina@zellandassociates.com>; Troy Bourne
<BourneT@spk.com>; dick@loewke.com
Subject: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community
 
Sandra –
 
Thank you for taking the time on Friday to discuss the proposed Spieker Senior Continuing Care
Facility on the Hale Ranch property immediately adjacent to Walnut Creek.  We are very excited
about this project and look forward to moving forward relatively soon with an application to the
County.  However, before we do so, we would like to set up a meeting with your staff to provide you
a high-level overview of the proposed project and to answer any questions you may have.  If it is
possible to hold this meeting as a Zoom call this week that would be preferable. 
 
Wednesday afternoon, Thursday between noon and 4 and Friday anytime work best for my
schedule.  Troy and Dick, on our team, can also weigh in on their availability.  Cristina Coley, my
scheduler, will work with Ana Spinola, and your team, to find a time that works for everyone.  We
think one hour would be enough time for this Zoom call.
 
Thank you again for taking the time.
 
Eric Zell
Zell & Associates
125 Park Place, Suite 200
Point Richmond,  CA  94801
 
(510) 231-4800 – office
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(510) 414-8071 – mobile
 
www.zellandassociates.com
 

http://www.zellandassociates.com/


From: Mattas, Steven
To: Wilson Wendt
Cc: Soichet, Emmanuelle; Sandra Meyer
Subject: RE: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
Date: Thursday, May 28, 2020 2:22:20 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thanks.  Please have the check made payable to the City of Walnut Creek.
 
Steve
 

From: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 28, 2020 2:19 PM
To: Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com>
Cc: Soichet, Emmanuelle <esoichet@meyersnave.com>; Sandra Meyer <meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Re: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
 
Steve,  I just talked with Troy.  He’s signing the Reimbursement Agmt. as modified and I’ll forward to
you and Sandi.  How should they pay the deposit?   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 26, 2020, at 6:38 PM, Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com> wrote:

Thanks
 

From: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 6:34 PM
To: Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com>
Subject: Re: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
 
Steve,  I’ll get it to you tomorrow.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 26, 2020, at 5:00 PM, Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com> wrote:

Thanks.
 
Do we know the formal name of the developer?  I need to have that to 
start a new matter.  I don’t recall if we knew the name  of the developer
when you prepared the agreement.  
 

From: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 22, 2020 2:42 PM
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To: Soichet, Emmanuelle <esoichet@meyersnave.com>
Subject: Re: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
 

[EXTERNAL E-MAIL]

Emma,  I got it and have been tardy in discussing it with the client. I just
discussed it with him and, obviously, we’ll agree to reimbursement.  I’ll
review it in detail and get back to you next week.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 22, 2020, at 2:37 PM, Soichet, Emmanuelle
<esoichet@meyersnave.com> wrote:

Wilson,
 
It was nice to meet you by phone on Wednesday.  I am re-
sending the attached reimbursement agreement regarding
review of the offer of dedication request.  Please have your
client sign and return the agreement to Sandi.  Note that I
have cc-ed Eric here, as well, as he requested that Sandi
send him the agreement.
 
I hope everyone has a good weekend.
 
Thanks,
Emma
 
Emmanuelle S. Soichet   
Of Counsel
<mime-attachment.png>
email    bio     website 
office: 510.808.2000 
Oakland • Los Angeles • Sacramento • San Diego •  Santa Rosa            

Confidentiality Notice:  This email may contain material that is confidential,
privileged and/or attorney work product for the sole use of the intended recipient.
Any review, reliance or distribution by others or forwarding without express
permission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please
contact the sender and delete all copies.

 
 

From: Soichet, Emmanuelle 
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 11:47 AM
To: bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com;
wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
Cc: nancy.troche@msrlegal.com; Mattas, Steven
<stevem@meyersnave.com>
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Subject: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
 
Counsel,
 
I work with Steve Mattas in the Walnut Creek City Attorney’s
Office.  I understand from Sandi Meyer that she has spoken
with your client, Eric Zell, regarding a reimbursement
agreement with the City to reimburse it for costs related to
review of his request.  Attached is a copy of the
reimbursement agreement.  Please have your client execute
the agreement today and send a copy back to Sandi.
 
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

<Reimbursement Agreement - Hale Property
Spieker.DOCX>
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From: Sandra Meyer
To: "Wilson Wendt"
Cc: Troy Bourne; Bryan Wenter; Eric Zell; dick@lowke.com; Nancy Troche
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
Date: Friday, May 15, 2020 4:40:27 PM

I’d be happy to discuss with you and Bryan next week however I want to point out some statements
in the “Summary Request…” document that are not accurate (which are highlighted below).
Paragraph 4 states:
 

Public Purpose:  The City had to have a public purpose in acquiring the Right of Way Strip. 
That purpose was to ensure future compliance with a policy in the then existing General Plan
with the development of the adjoining property in the unincorporated area of the County of
Contra Costa (the “County Property”). The General Plan policy involved was contained in the
list of Street Recommendations and Improvements:  “Kinross Drive shall not be connected to
Seven Hills Ranch Road.”  The current General Plan, adopted in 1989, in Policy 4.2 carries
forward that direction by discouraging through traffic on local streets and collectors that
would increase traffic in City residential neighborhoods.

 
The General Plan policy regarding Kinross Drive was in the General Plan adopted in 1989, nineteen
years after the Final Map was approved. The General Plan prior to the 1989 plan was adopted in
1971 (one year after the approval of the subdivision) but there were no policies in the 1971 General
Plan regarding residential streets. I’m assuming that the prior General Plan that was adopted in 1964
didn’t have any policies regarding residential streets either (although I haven’t found a copy of that
plan). The City’s current General Plan was adopted in April of 2006.
 
I don’t have a copy of the PC resolution that approved the Tentative Map in May 1970 so I don’t
know if there was a condition to the approval of the Final Map for the conveyance of the Right of
Way Strip, in fee, to the City nor can I find a copy of the PC staff report that might explain why the
condition was placed.
 
That being said, I’m available Monday from 2 - 3 and on Tuesday from 2 - 4.
 

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
Cc: Troy Bourne <BourneT@spk.com>; Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>; Eric Zell
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<eric@zellandassociates.com>; dick@lowke.com; Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Fwd: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Here are the draft docs we discussed.  Obviously, this is your call and Steve May have some
other way of terminating the city’s fee interest in the 1’ strip.  I tried to find the most benign way
and Bryan and I would like to talk with you at your convenience.  If you’ll indicate a time next week
that works for you,  I’ll have my assistant set up a call.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

Begin forwarded message:

From: Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Date: May 15, 2020 at 1:10:57 PM PDT
To: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]

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
Cc: bournet@spk.com; Bryan Wenter; eric@zellandassociates.com; dickdick@loewke.com; Nancy Troche
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
Date: Sunday, May 17, 2020 7:09:11 PM

Can we move our call to Wednesday or Friday next week? I’ve got a CC Committee meeting to
prepare for on Monday and a CC meeting on Tuesday evening. I’d also like to have Steve M on the
call. Anytime on Wednesday after 2:00 or Friday morning from 8:30 – 9:30 or between 11:00 and
1:00.
 

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
Cc: bournet@spk.com; Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>; eric@zellandassociates.com;
dickdick@loewke.com; Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Re: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Bryan and I are available at 2:00 Monday.  Nancy will set up the call Monday morning and
send out call in info.  Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 15, 2020, at 4:40 PM, Sandra Meyer <meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

I’d be happy to discuss with you and Bryan next week however I want to point out
some statements in the “Summary Request…” document that are not accurate (which
are highlighted below). Paragraph 4 states:
 

Public Purpose:  The City had to have a public purpose in acquiring the Right of
Way Strip.  That purpose was to ensure future compliance with a policy in the
then existing General Plan with the development of the adjoining property in
the unincorporated area of the County of Contra Costa (the “County
Property”). The General Plan policy involved was contained in the list of Street
Recommendations and Improvements:  “Kinross Drive shall not be connected
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to Seven Hills Ranch Road.”  The current General Plan, adopted in 1989, in
Policy 4.2 carries forward that direction by discouraging through traffic on local
streets and collectors that would increase traffic in City residential
neighborhoods.

 
The General Plan policy regarding Kinross Drive was in the General Plan adopted in
1989, nineteen years after the Final Map was approved. The General Plan prior to the
1989 plan was adopted in 1971 (one year after the approval of the subdivision) but
there were no policies in the 1971 General Plan regarding residential streets. I’m
assuming that the prior General Plan that was adopted in 1964 didn’t have any policies
regarding residential streets either (although I haven’t found a copy of that plan). The
City’s current General Plan was adopted in April of 2006.
 
I don’t have a copy of the PC resolution that approved the Tentative Map in May 1970
so I don’t know if there was a condition to the approval of the Final Map for the
conveyance of the Right of Way Strip, in fee, to the City nor can I find a copy of the PC
staff report that might explain why the condition was placed.
 
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
Cc: Troy Bourne <BourneT@spk.com>; Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>;
Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>; dick@lowke.com; Nancy Troche
<nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Fwd: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-
iManage.FID1021924]
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Here are the draft docs we discussed.  Obviously, this is your call and Steve May
have some other way of terminating the city’s fee interest in the 1’ strip.  I tried to find
the most benign way and Bryan and I would like to talk with you at your convenience.
 If you’ll indicate a time next week that works for you,  I’ll have my assistant set up a
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call.   Wilson

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
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may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not
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hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you
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From: Bryan Wenter
To: "Sandra Meyer"; Wilson Wendt
Cc: bournet@spk.com; eric@zellandassociates.com; dickdick@loewke.com; Nancy Troche
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
Date: Sunday, May 17, 2020 8:02:21 PM

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
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an intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you
received this e-mail message in error, please immediately notify the sender by replying to this message or by
telephone. Thank you.
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From: Sandra Meyer
To: "Wilson Wendt"
Cc: Nancy Troche; Mattas, Steven (stevem@meyersnave.com); Melanie Meneses; Bryan Wenter
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 7:47:04 AM

Hi Wilson,
 
Wednesday at 3:00 works for both Steve and me. Please send out an appointment for us. Thanks.
 

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
Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 6:57 AM
To: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>; Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Nancy Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Re: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Will 3:00 on Wed. 5/20 work for you and Steve?  If so, I’ll ask Nancy to set it up and send out
call in info.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 18, 2020, at 6:43 AM, Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com> wrote:

All work, thanks. 

Sent from my iPhone

On May 18, 2020, at 6:13 AM, Wilson Wendt
<wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com> wrote:

﻿ Bryan,  How about 3:00 on Wed. 5/20  or 8:30 Friday 5/22?    Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

Begin forwarded message:
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From: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>
Date: May 17, 2020 at 8:01:53 PM PDT
To: 'Sandra Meyer' <meyer@walnut-creek.org>, Wilson
Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Cc: "bournet@spk.com" <bournet@spk.com>,
"eric@zellandassociates.com"
<eric@zellandassociates.com>, "dickdick@loewke.com"
<dickdick@loewke.com>, Nancy Troche
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
Cc: bournet@spk.com; Bryan Wenter
<bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>;
eric@zellandassociates.com; dickdick@loewke.com; Nancy
Troche <nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
[IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
 
Can we move our call to Wednesday or Friday next week?
I’ve got a CC Committee meeting to prepare for on Monday
and a CC meeting on Tuesday evening. I’d also like to have
Steve M on the call. Anytime on Wednesday after 2:00 or
Friday morning from 8:30 – 9:30 or between 11:00 and 1:00.
 

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
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should
be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Bryan and I are available at 2:00 Monday.  Nancy will
set up the call Monday morning and send out call in info.
 Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 15, 2020, at 4:40 PM, Sandra Meyer
<meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

I’d be happy to discuss with you and Bryan next
week however I want to point out some
statements in the “Summary Request…”
document that are not accurate (which are
highlighted below). Paragraph 4 states:
 

Public Purpose:  The City had to have a
public purpose in acquiring the Right of
Way Strip.  That purpose was to ensure
future compliance with a policy in the
then existing General Plan with the
development of the adjoining property
in the unincorporated area of the
County of Contra Costa (the “County
Property”). The General Plan policy
involved was contained in the list of
Street Recommendations and
Improvements:  “Kinross Drive shall not
be connected to Seven Hills Ranch
Road.”  The current General Plan,
adopted in 1989, in Policy 4.2 carries
forward that direction by discouraging
through traffic on local streets and
collectors that would increase traffic in
City residential neighborhoods.

 
The General Plan policy regarding Kinross Drive
was in the General Plan adopted in 1989,
nineteen years after the Final Map was
approved. The General Plan prior to the 1989
plan was adopted in 1971 (one year after the

mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org


approval of the subdivision) but there were no
policies in the 1971 General Plan regarding
residential streets. I’m assuming that the prior
General Plan that was adopted in 1964 didn’t
have any policies regarding residential streets
either (although I haven’t found a copy of that
plan). The City’s current General Plan was
adopted in April of 2006.
 
I don’t have a copy of the PC resolution that
approved the Tentative Map in May 1970 so I
don’t know if there was a condition to the
approval of the Final Map for the conveyance
of the Right of Way Strip, in fee, to the City nor
can I find a copy of the PC staff report that
might explain why the condition was placed.
 
That being said, I’m available Monday from 2 -
3 and on Tuesday from 2 - 4.
 

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development
Director
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
Cc: Troy Bourne <BourneT@spk.com>; Bryan
Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>; Eric
Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>;
dick@lowke.com; Nancy Troche
<nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Fwd: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate
(Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
 

Warning: this message is from an external user
and should be treated with caution.
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Sandi,  Here are the draft docs we discussed.
 Obviously, this is your call and Steve May have
some other way of terminating the city’s fee
interest in the 1’ strip.  I tried to find the most
benign way and Bryan and I would like to talk
with you at your convenience.  If you’ll indicate
a time next week that works for you,  I’ll have
my assistant set up a call.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

Begin forwarded message:

From: Nancy Troche
<nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Date: May 15, 2020 at 1:10:57 PM
PDT
To: Wilson Wendt
<wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Irrevocable Offer to
Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-
iManage.FID1021924]

Here you go.
 
Nancy Troche | Miller Starr
Regalia
1331 North California Boulevard, Fifth
Floor, Walnut Creek, CA 94596
t: 925.935.9400 | d: 925.941.3238 | f:
925.933.4126
nancy.troche@msrlegal.com | www.msrlegal.com
 

<mime-attachment.gif>

MILLER STARR REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended
only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt
from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not an intended
recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering this
e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is
strictly prohibited. If you received this e-mail message in error,
please immediately notify the sender by replying to this message
or by telephone. Thank you.

mailto:nancy.troche@msrlegal.com
mailto:wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
blocked::mailto:firstname.lastname@msrlegal.com
http://www.msrlegal.com/
http://www.msrlegal.com/


From: dick@loewke.com
To: "Eric Zell"; Steve Waymire
Cc: "Sandra Meyer"; bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com; Ethan Bindernagel; Heather Ballenger
Subject: RE: Question
Date: Thursday, April 30, 2020 9:54:55 AM
Attachments: 191093_ALTA_Prelim_2020-02-28_Reduced File.pdf

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Steve,
 
Attached is the ALTA Survey just recently completed by our team civil engineers.  Dick
 
Loewke Planning Associates, Inc.
925.679.4850 | Loewke.com
CBRE Broker #01933504

 
From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> 
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2020 9:00 AM
To: Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>; bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com; Ethan Bindernagel
<EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Heather Ballenger <Ballenger@walnut-creek.org>; Richard
Loewke <dick@loewke.com>
Subject: Re: Question
 
Steve-
 
Adding Dick Loewke who should be able to provide. 

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 30, 2020, at 8:15 AM, Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-creek.org>
wrote:

﻿
Eric,
 
Hi Eric,  We are trying to piece together the puzzle here.
 
Can you provide us with the ALTA mapping for the Hale property?
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LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS:


THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF WALNUT CREEK, IN THE
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


REAL PROPERTY LOCATED PARTIALLY IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF THE COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA,
AND PARTIALLY WITHIN THE CITY OF WALNUT CREEK, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


TRACT ONE:


PARCEL ONE:


PORTION OF LOTS 25 AND 39 AND PORTION OF AN UNNUMBERED TRACT OF LAND LYING TO THE WEST OF
SAID LOTS 25 AND 39, ALL AS DESIGNATED ON THE MAP ENTITLED "MAP NO. 1, WALNUT PARK LANDS OF
WALNUT CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY", WHICH MAP WAS FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF THE
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON JUNE 20, 1910 IN VOLUME 3 OF MAPS, AT PAGE
56, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


BEGINNING AT AN IRON PIPE AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF THE 1.298 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND
DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER HALE EWELL TO FRED NEWTON, DATED JANUARY 3, 1935
AND RECORDED JANUARY 15, 1935 IN VOLUME 381 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 317, SAID POINT OF
BEGINNING BEING ON A FENCE LINE OF THE NORTH LINE OF A 12 FEET IN WIDTH ROADWAY, SAID POINT
OF BEGINNING BEING HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS "STATION A"; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF
BEGINNING NORTH 77° 36' 30" EAST ALONG SAID FENCE LINE, BEING ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
ROADWAY, 305.14 FEET TO A 2 INCH BY 2 INCH STAKE; THENCE LEAVING SAID FENCE LINE AND
FOLLOWING THE NORTHERLY, WESTERLY AND NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID ROADWAY AS FOLLOWS:


EASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT WITH A RADIUS OF 175 FEET, TANGENT TO THE LAST
COURSE, 98.76 FEET TO A POINT FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE LEFT WITH A
RADIUS OF 90 FEET BEARS NORTH 44° 53' 30" WEST; NORTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID LAST
MENTIONED CURVE WITH A RADIUS OF 90 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 60.40 FEET; NORTH 6° 39' 30"
EAST TANGENT TO THE LAST CURVE, 90.04 FEET TO A 2 INCH BY 2 INCH STAKE; NORTH 4° 52' 30"
WEST, 154.92 FEET; NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT WITH A
RADIUS OF 70 FEET, TANGENT TO THE LAST COURSE, 128.13 FEET AND SOUTH 80° EAST TANGENT TO THE
LAST CURVE, 143.20 FEET TO A 2 INCH BY 2 INCH STAKE AND A POINT HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS
"STATION B"; THENCE NORTH 31° 31' EAST, 97.78 FEET TO A NAIL IN WATER TANK OF A FENCE LINE;
THENCE NORTH 61° 11' 30° WEST ALONG SAID FENCE LINE AND ALONG THE EXTENSION NORTH 61° 11'
30" WEST THEREOF AT 205.95 FEET, A 2 INCH BY 2 INCH STAKE AT 511 FEET, A 2 INCH BY 2 INCH
STAKE, A TOTAL DISTANCE OF 589.63 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 39; THENCE ALONG SAID
NORTH LINE SOUTH 72° 19' 30' WEST, 370.93 FEET AND NORTH 75° 50' WEST, 151 FEET TO THE EAST
LINE OF SAID LOT 25; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 25, NORTH 75° 50' WEST, 97 FEET
AND SOUTH 50° 26' WEST, 87 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF THE PARCEL OF LAND
DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER HALE EWELL TO JENNINGS E. HEFFELFINGER, DATED JUNE
28, 1933 AND RECORDED JUNE 30, 1933 IN VOLUME 345 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 240; THENCE
ALONG SAID EAST LINE SOUTH 40° 05' 15" WEST, 110.75 FEET; SOUTH 5° 36' 45° WEST, 160.6 FEET;
SOUTH 28° 35' 15" EAST, 237.32 FEET AND SOUTH 13° 49' 45" WEST, 91 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT ON
THE NORTH LINE OF THE 1.473 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER
HALE EWELL TO W.H. GEORGE, DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 1934 AND RECORDED SEPTEMBER 27, 1934 IN
VOLUME 367 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 444; THENCE SOUTH 77° 38' EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE,
41.62 FEET TO THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF SAID 1.298 ACRE NEWTON PARCEL (381 OR 317);
THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NEWTON PARCEL (381 OR 317) BEING ALONG A FENCE LINE
SOUTH 77° 38' EAST 252.9 FEET AND SOUTH 70° 53' 30" EAST, 204.2 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE ON THE
EAST LINE OF SAID NEWTON PARCEL (381 OR 317); THENCE SOUTH 12° 47' EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE,
BEING ALONG A FENCE LINE, 49.7 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.


EXCEPTING FROM PARCEL ONE:
1) THAT PORTION THEREOF DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO CONTRA COSTA COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, RECORDED JUNE 19, 1969, BOOK 5902, PAGE 259 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.
2) ALL WATER RIGHTS AS RESERVED IN THE DEED FROM ANNE FISH BURGESS (FORMERLY ANNIE WEBSTER
FISH), RECORDED MAY 2, 1910, BOOK 153 OF DEEDS, PAGE 261.


PARCEL TWO:
THE RIGHT OF WAY CREATED AS AN APPURTENANCE TO PARCEL ONE ABOVE IN THE DEED TO SHERIDAN
WINFIELD HALE, RECORDED JANUARY 13, 1950, BOOK 1490, PAGE 442 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS
FOLLOWS:


"A RIGHT OF WAY (NOT TO BE EXCLUSIVE) AS AN APPURTENANCE TO THE 15.4 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND
DESCRIBED AS PARCEL ONE ABOVE, FOR USE AS A ROADWAY FOR VEHICLES OF ALL KINDS, PEDESTRIANS
AND ANIMALS, FOR WATER, GAS, OIL AND SEWER PIPE LINES, AND FOR TELEPHONE, ELECTRIC LIGHT AND
POWER LINES, TOGETHER WITH THE NECESSARY POLES OR CONDUITS TO CARRY SAID LINES OVER THE
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED STRIPS OF LAND:


(a) A STRIP OF LAND 12 FEET IN WIDTH, THE SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY LINE OF WHICH IS PARALLEL
WITH AND 12 FEET SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY, MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FORM THE NORTHERLY AND
WESTERLY LINE THEREOF AND WHICH NORTHERLY AND WESTERLY LINE IS THE SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY
LINE OF THE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED AS PARCEL ONE ABOVE, BETWEEN "STATION A" AND "STATION
B", AS SAID STATIONS ARE DESIGNATED IN THE DESCRIPTION OF SAID PARCEL ONE ABOVE.


(b) A STRIP OF LAND 12 FEET IN WIDTH, THE SOUTH LINE OF WHICH IS PARALLEL WITH AND 12 FEET
SOUTHERLY, MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH LINE THEREOF AND WHICH NORTH LINE IS
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


BEGINNING AT "STATION A", AS SAID STATION IS DESIGNATED IN THE DESCRIPTION OF PARCEL ONE
ABOVE; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING SOUTH 77° 33' WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE
1.298 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER HALE EWELL TO FRED
NEWTON, DATED JANUARY 3, 1935 AND RECORDED JANUARY 15, 1935 IN VOLUME 381 OF OFFICIAL
RECORDS, AT PAGE 317, 348.67 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 45.15 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND
DESCRIBED AS PARCEL TWO IN THE DEED FROM J.B. JOHN, ET UX, TO IDOLENE HOOPER HALE, DATED
MARCH 15, 1927 AND RECORDED MARCH 24, 1928, IN VOLUME 133 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 220.
THE WESTERLY EXTREMITY OF SAID 12 FOOT STRIP SHALL COINCIDE WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
45.15 ACRE HALE PARCEL (133 OR 220).


APN: 172-150-012


MAP REFERENCE NOTES:


TITLE COMPANY: CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY
455 MARKET STREET, SUITE 2100
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105


TITLE/ORDER NO.: 15606633-156-TJK-JM


TITLE OFFICER : JEFF MARTIN


REPORT DATE: AUGUST 16, 2019, AMENDED AUGUST 21, 2019, AMENDMENT NO. A


NATURE OF TITLE: A FEE, AS TO TRACT ONE, PARCEL ONE, TRACT TWO, TRACT THREE AND TRACT 
FOUR, AN EASEMENT, AS TO TRACT ONE, PARCEL TWO


TITLE VESTED IN: SEVEN HILLS RANCH I, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, BY 
GRANT DEED RECORDED JULY 30, 2018, INSTRUMENT NO. 2018-120887, 
OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS TO TRACT ONE, AND SEVEN HILLS RANCH II, LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, BY GRANT DEED RECORDED MAY 6, 
2019, INSTRUMENT NO. 2019-64218, OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS TO TRACT TWO, 
AND THE WALDEN COMPANY, A CORPORATION, WESTERN MORTGAGE AND GUARANTY 
COMPANY, SEVEN HILLS RANCH I, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY AND SEVEN HILLS RANCH II, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, ALL AS THEIR INTERESTS MAY BE JUDICIALLY DETERMINED, AS TO 
TRACT THREE AND FOUR


 
A.P.N.: 172-080-05 AND 08, 172-150-12, AND 173-042-09


FLOOD ZONE: THE SUBJECT PROPERTY APPEARS ON F.I.R.M. MAP NUMBER 06013C0291F, 
EFFECTIVE DATE, JUNE 16 2009, AND LIES WITHIN ZONE X, AREAS 
DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN.


GROSS LAND AREA: 32.372 ACRES, MORE OR LESS


A.L.T.A. / N.S.P.S. LAND TITLE SURVEY


OF THE LANDS OF


SEVEN HILLS RANCH I, LLC, SEVEN HILLS RANCH II, LLC,


THE WALDEN COMPANY, AND WESTERN MORTGAGE AND GUARANTY COMPANY


AS DESCRIBED IN THE AMENDED PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT, PREPARED BY CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY


ORDER NUMBER: 1004-6152986


EXCEPTIONS TO TITLE INSURANCE COVERAGE:


1. PROPERTY TAXES, WHICH ARE A LIEN NOT YET DUE AND PAYABLE, INCLUDING ANY ASSESSMENTS
COLLECTED WITH TAXES TO BE LEVIED FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020.


2. PRIOR TO CLOSING, ESCROW MUST CONTACT THE COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR'S OFFICE TO CONFIRM ALL
AMOUNTS OWING, INCLUDING CURRENT FISCAL YEAR TAXES, SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES, ESCAPED
ASSESSMENTS AND ANY DELINQUENCIES.


3. THE LIEN OF SUPPLEMENTAL OR ESCAPED ASSESSMENTS OF PROPERTY TAXES, IF ANY, MADE PURSUANT
TO THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 3.5 (COMMENCING WITH SECTION 75) OR PART 2, CHAPTER 3,
ARTICLES 3 AND 4, RESPECTIVELY, OF THE REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA AS A RESULT OF THE TRANSFER OF TITLE TO THE VESTEE NAMED IN SCHEDULE A OR AS A
RESULT OF CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP OR NEW CONSTRUCTION OCCURRING PRIOR TO DATE OF POLICY.


3-A NOTE:  NO TAXES HAVE BEEN ASSESSED FOR THE 2018-2019 TAX YEAR FOR TRACTS THREE AND FOUR
DESCRIBED HEREIN.


4. WATER RIGHTS, CLAIMS OR TITLE TO WATER, WHETHER OR NOT DISCLOSED BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS.


5. RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE AREA COMMONLY KNOWN AS
ANY PUBLIC STREET OR ROADWAY.


6. COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS BUT OMITTING ANY COVENANTS OR RESTRICTIONS, IF
ANY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THOSE BASED UPON RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL
ORIENTATION, FAMILIAL STATUS, MARITAL STATUS, DISABILITY, HANDICAP, NATIONAL ORIGIN,
CITIZENSHIP, IMMIGRATION STATUS, PRIMARY LANGUAGE, ANCESTRY, SOURCE OF INCOME, GENDER,
GENDER IDENTITY, GENDER EXPRESSION, MEDICAL CONDITION OR GENETIC INFORMATION, AS SET
FORTH IN APPLICABLE STATE OR FEDERAL LAWS, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT SAID COVENANT OR
RESTRICTION IS PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, AS SET FORTH IN THE DOCUMENT


RECORDING DATE: OCTOBER 26, 1910
RECORDING NO: BOOK 160 DEEDS, PAGE 11
CONTAINS A REVERSIONARY CLAUSE
AFFECTS: A PORTION OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN AND OTHER LAND.


7. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT


ENTITLED: NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF OFFER OF DEDICATION
EXECUTED BY: THE WESTERN MORTGAGE AND GUARANTY COMPANY
RECORDING DATE: MARCH 6, 1912
RECORDING NO: BOOK 404 DEEDS, PAGE 485


   REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS. PARCELS PLOTTED


7-A. RIGHTS OF THE LOT OWNERS FOR ROADWAY AND UTILITIES WITHIN WALDEN TRACT, FILED SEPTEMBER
12, 1917, BOOK 16 OF MAPS, PAGE 333


8. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A
DOCUMENT:
GRANTED TO: PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
PURPOSE: PUBLIC UTILITIES
RECORDING DATE: JUNE 19, 1933
RECORDING NO: BOOK 353, PAGE 19, INSTRUMENT NO. 4760, OFFICIAL RECORDS
AFFECTS: A PORTION OF PREMISES PLOTTED


9. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A
DOCUMENT:
GRANTED TO: PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
PURPOSE: PUBLIC UTILITIES
RECORDING DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 1936
RECORDING NO: BOOK 420, PAGE 365, INSTRUMENT NO. 11684, OFFICIAL RECORDS
AFFECTS: A PORTION OF PREMISES PLOTTED


10. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A
DOCUMENT:
GRANTED TO: SHERIDAN WINFIELD HALE
PURPOSE: ROADWAY AND UTILITIES
RECORDING DATE: JANUARY 13, 1950
RECORDING NO: BOOK 1490, PAGE 442, INSTRUMENT NO. 1837, OFFICIAL RECORDS
AFFECTS: A PORTION OF PREMISES PLOTTED


11. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT
ENTITLED: DEED
DATED: SEPTEMBER 8, 1950
EXECUTED BY: IDOLENE HOOPER HALE
RECORDING DATE: SEPTEMBER 13, 1950
RECORDING NO: BOOK 1632, PAGE 114, INSTRUMENT NO. 46818, OFFICIAL RECORDS
REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS. PLOTTED


12. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT
ENTITLED: GRANT DEED
DATED: APRIL 27, 1953
EXECUTED BY: THE CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF THE EAST BAY
RECORDING DATE: MAY 15, 1951
RECORDING NO: BOOK 1764, PAGE 87, INSTRUMENT NO. 23716, OFFICIAL RECORDS
REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS. PLOTTED


13. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT
ENTITLED: DEED
DATED: DECEMBER 30, 1953
EXECUTED BY: IDOLENE HOOPER HALE
RECORDING DATE: JANUARY 13, 1954
RECORDING NO: BOOK 2253, PAGE 422, INSTRUMENT NO. 1824, OFFICIAL
REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS. PARCELS PLOTTED


14. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A
DOCUMENT:
GRANTED TO: NORTH WALNUT CREEK EMERGENCY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
PURPOSE: FLOOD CONTROL
RECORDING DATE: APRIL 17, 1961
RECORDING NO: BOOK 3847, PAGE 557, INSTRUMENT NO. 25514, OFFICIAL RECORDS
AFFECTS: A PORTION OF PREMISES PLOTTED


15. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO AS CONDEMNED BY
AN INSTRUMENT,
ENTITLED: FINAL ORDER OF CONDEMNATION
COURT: SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
CASE NO.: C05-01237
IN FAVOR OF: CITY OF WALNUT CREEK
PURPOSE: STORM DRAIN
RECORDING DATE: NOVEMBER 3, 2005
RECORDING NO: INSTRUMENT NO. 2005-427444, OFFICIAL RECORDS
AFFECTS: A PORTION OF PREMISES PLOTTED


16. THE HEREIN DESCRIBED LAND IS LOCATED IN AN AREA FREQUENTLY SUBJECT TO LAND CONSERVATION
CONTRACTS EXECUTED PURSUANT TO THE WILLIAMSON ACT (CAL. GOVT. CODE §§ 51200 ET SEQ.).
LAND CONSERVATION CONTRACTS RESTRICT THE LAND USE TO AGRICULTURAL, RECREATIONAL,
OPEN-SPACE AND OTHER COMPATIBLE USES. IF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED LAND IS SUBJECT TO A LAND
CONSERVATION CONTRACT, PLEASE NOTIFY THE TITLE DEPARTMENT. THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT
TO ADD ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE FURTHER REQUIREMENTS.


17. THE SEARCH DID NOT DISCLOSE ANY OPEN MORTGAGES OR DEEDS OF TRUST OF RECORD, THEREFORE THE
COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REQUIRE FURTHER EVIDENCE TO CONFIRM THAT THE PROPERTY IS
UNENCUMBERED, AND FURTHER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS OR ADD
ADDITIONAL ITEMS OR EXCEPTIONS UPON RECEIPT OF THE REQUESTED EVIDENCE.


18. ANY RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES IN POSSESSION OF A PORTION OF, OR ALL OF, SAID LAND, WHICH
RIGHTS ARE NOT DISCLOSED BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS.


THE COMPANY WILL REQUIRE, FOR REVIEW, A FULL AND COMPLETE COPY OF ANY UNRECORDED
AGREEMENT, CONTRACT, LICENSE AND/OR LEASE, TOGETHER WITH ALL SUPPLEMENTS, ASSIGNMENTS AND
AMENDMENTS THERETO, BEFORE ISSUING ANY POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE WITHOUT EXCEPTING THIS
ITEM FROM COVERAGE.


THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL
REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID DOCUMENTS.


19. MATTERS WHICH MAY BE DISCLOSED BY AN INSPECTION AND/OR BY A CORRECT ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE
SURVEY OF SAID LAND THAT IS SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, AND/OR BY INQUIRY OF THE PARTIES
IN POSSESSION THEREOF.


SURVEYORS STATEMENT:


TO : TITLE COMPANY


THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2016 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND
TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 3, 
4, 8, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 AND 21. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON FEBRUARY 21, 
2020.


       
DAVIS THRESH, PLS 6868                           DATE            
DTHRESH@BKF.COM


ALTA SURVEY NOTES:


1. THE BOLD TYPE FOR THE NOTES REGARDING EXCEPTIONS TO TITLE ARE COMMENTS MADE BY THE
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR PREPARING THIS ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR CLARITY AND
EMPHASIS OF THEIR EFFECT.


2. REFER TO RECORD DOCUMENTS AND MAP FOR FULL REFERENCE OF TITLE EXCEPTIONS WHICH MAY HAVE
BEEN OMITTED IN THE INTEREST OF CLARITY AND WHICH ARE BEING MADE A PART OF THIS ALTA/NSPS
LAND TITLE SURVEY BY REFERENCE THERETO.


3. ALL DISTANCES AND DIMENSIONS ARE IN US SURVEY FEET, AND DECIMALS THEREOF. DISTANCES SHOWN
ARE MEASURED UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.


4. ALL TIES ARE PERPENDICULAR UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
5. THE FIELD SURVEY WAS COMPLETED ON FEBRUARY 21, 2020.
6. THE BOUNDARY SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON FIELD MEASUREMENTS AND RECORD INFORMATION. A RECORD


OF SURVEY IS IN PROGRESS AND WILL BE FILED WITH THE COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA IN COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTION 8762 OF THE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR'S ACT.


7. THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE OF THE SITE AS A CEMETERY DURING THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE
FIELD WORK.


8. SEE SHEETS 2 AND 3 FOR PLANIMETRIC AND BOUNDARY INFORMATION.
9. THE IMAGERY SHOWN ON SHEETS 2 AND 3 IS PROVIDED FOR REFERENCE ONLY AND MAY NOT REFLECT


CURRENT SITE CONDITIONS. THE SOURCE OF THE IMAGERY IS ALAMEDA COUNTY. THE DATE OF THE
PHOTOGRAPHY IS 2014.


10. REGARDING TABLE A ITEMS 3 AND 4, SEE MAP REFERENCE NOTES ON THIS SHEET.
11. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 8, SEE SHEETS 2 AND 3.
12. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 13, SEE SHEETS 2 AND 3.
13. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 14, SEE SHEETS 2 AND 3.
14. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 16, THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING


CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELD WORK.
15. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 17, AN INQUIRY HAS BEEN MADE WITH THE CITY OF WALNUT CREEK


REGARDING ANY PROPOSED CHANGES IN RIGHT OF WAY ON WALNUT BOULEVARD, NORTH SAN CARLOS
DRIVE, AND KINROSS DRIVE.


16. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 18, THERE WERE NO WETLAND DELINEATION MARKERS WITNESSED DURING THE
COURSE OF THIS SURVEY.


17. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 19, EASEMENTS HAVE BEEN PLOTTED THAT ARE LISTED IN THE TITLE
REPORT REFERENCED HEREON


18. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 20, BKF ENGINEERS CARRIES PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE UP TO
5,000,000.00 PER CLAIM.


19. REGARDING TABLE A ITEM 21, CITY AND COUNTY BOUNDARIES WHERE ADJACENT TO THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY HAVE BEEN DELINEATED ON SHEETS 2 AND 3. THE SOURCE OF THE INFORMATION WAS
OBTAINED FROM THE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY GIS WEBSITE.


BASIS OF BEARINGS:


THE BEARING OF NORTH 48°41'59" EAST BETWEEN FOUND MONUMENTS, SAID BEARING BEING CALCULATED
BETWEEN THE SOUTHWESTERLY TERMINUS OF THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF LOT 39 AND THE MOST EASTERLY
CORNER OF LOT 41 AS SAID LOTS ARE SHOWN ON THE MAP TITLED, "MAP NO. 1, WALNUT PARK LANDS OF
WALNUT CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY," FILED FOR RECORD JUNE 20, 1910, IN VOLUME 3 OF MAPS AT
PAGE 56, CONTRA COSTA COUNTY RECORDS, WAS TAKEN AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY.


LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS:


TRACT TWO:


PARCEL ONE:


LOTS 40 AND 41 AS DESIGNATED ON THE MAP ENTITLED "MAP NO. 1, WALNUT PARK LANDS OF WALNUT
CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY," WHICH MAP WAS FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF THE COUNTY
OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON JUNE 20, 1910, IN VOLUME 3 OF MAPS, AT PAGE 56.


PARCEL TWO:


PORTION OF LOTS 25 AND 39 AND PORTION OF AN UNNUMBERED TRACT OF LAND LYING TO THE WEST OF
SAID LOTS 25 AND 39, ALL AS DESIGNATED ON THE MAP ENTITLED "MAP NO. 1, WALNUT PARK LANDS OF
WALNUT CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY," WHICH MAP WAS FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF THE
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON JUNE 20, 1910, IN VOLUME 3 OF MAPS, AT PAGE
56, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


BEGINNING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 39; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING
ALONG THE NORTHWEST LINE OF SAID LOT 39, AS FOLLOWS: SOUTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES WEST, 78
FEET; SOUTH 7 DEGREES 36 MINUTES WEST, 75 FEET; SOUTH 72 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST,
467 FEET AND NORTH 75 DEGREES 50 MINUTES WEST, 151 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 25;
THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 25, NORTH 75 DEGREES 50 MINUTES WEST, 97 FEET AND
SOUTH 50 DEGREES 26 MINUTES WEST, 87 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF THE PARCEL
DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER HALE EWELL TO JENNINGS E. HEFFELFINGER, DATED JUNE
28, 1933, AND RECORDED JUNE 30, 1933, IN VOLUME 345 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGES 240;
THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE SOUTH 40 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST, 110.75 FEET; SOUTH
5 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, 160.6 FEET; SOUTH 28 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 15 SECONDS
EAST, 237.32 FEET AND SOUTH 13 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, 91 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT
ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE 1.473 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER
HALE EWELL TO W. H. GEORGE, DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 1934, AND RECORDED SEPTEMBER 27, 1934, IN
VOLUME 367 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 444; THENCE SOUTH 77 DEGREES 38 MINUTES EAST ALONG
SAID NORTH LINE, 41.62 FEET TO THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF THE 1.298 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND
DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER HALE EWELL TO FRED NEWTON, DATED JANUARY 3, 1935,
AND RECORDED JANUARY 15, 1935, IN VOLUME 381 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 317; THENCE ALONG
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NEWTON PARCEL (381 OR 317) BEING ALONG A FENCE LINE SOUTH 77 DEGREES
38 MINUTES EAST, 252.9 FEET AND SOUTH 70 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 204.2 FEET TO
AN IRON PIPE ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID NEWTON PARCEL (381 OR 317); THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES 47
MINUTES EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE, BEING ALONG A FENCE LINE, 49.7 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE AT
THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF SAID NEWTON PARCEL (381 OR 317) BEING ON A FENCE LINE ON THE
NORTH LINE OF A 12 FEET IN WIDTH ROADWAY; THENCE SOUTH 77 DEGREES 33 MINUTES WEST ALONG THE
SOUTH LINE OF SAID NEWTON PARCEL (381 OR 317) BEING ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID ROADWAY,
348.67 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 45.15 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED AS PARCEL TWO IN
THE DEED FROM J. B. JOHN, ET UX, TO IDOLENE HOOPER HALE, DATED MARCH 15, 1928, AND RECORDED
MARCH 24, 1928, IN VOLUME 133 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 220; THENCE NORTH 82 DEGREES 38
MINUTES EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE TO AN ANGLE POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 39, BEING
AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTHERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE NORTH 3 DEGREES WEST, 712.9 FEET
WITH THE WESTERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE NORTH 48 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 665.2
FEET, AS DESIGNATED ON SAID MAP (3 M 56) ; THENCE ALONG THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 39
AS FOLLOWS:


NORTH 48 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 665.2 FEET;
SOUTH 48 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 64 FEET;
NORTH 48 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 62 FEET;
NORTH 47 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 63.4 FEET;
NORTH 48 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 238.4 FEET AND NORTH 64 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 30
SECONDS WEST, 790.6 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.


PARCEL THREE: (CITY OF WALNUT CREEK)


LOTS 58, 59, AND 60 AND PORTION OF LOTS 57 AND 61, AS DESIGNATED ON THE MAP ENTITLED "MAP OF
WALDEN, CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA," WHICH MAP WAS FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER
OF THE COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1917, IN VOLUME 16 OF
MAPS, AT PAGE 333, SAID PORTION OF LOTS 57 AND 61 LYING NORTHERLY OF A LINE DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:


BEGINNING ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 61 DISTANT THEREON NORTH 2 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 30
SECONDS WEST, 209.81 FEET FROM THE MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT, 61; THENCE FROM SAID
POINT OF BEGINNING LEAVING SAID EAST LINE SOUTH 81 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 25 SECONDS WEST,
317.27 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF FAIR OAK STREET.


APN: 172-080-007; 173-042-009


EXCEPTING FROM TRACT TWO ABOVE DESCRIBED, THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY AND INTERESTS HERETOFORE
CONVEYED:


1. ALL THE PROPERTY AND INTERESTS (PARTICULARLY THE 1 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED AS
"TRACT NO. 2" THEREIN) CONVEYED BY THE DEED FROM IDOLENE HOOPER HALE EWELL AND HUSBAND TO
THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, DATED JUNE 19, 1939, AND RECORDED AUGUST 11, 1939, IN VOLUME
516 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 285, RECORDS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY; BUT NOT EXCEPTING
THEREFROM ANY RIGHTS RESERVED TO THE GRANTOR IN SAID DEED WHICH MAY BE APPURTENANT TO ANY
PART OF THE REAL PROPERTY HEREBY CONVEYED.


2. ALL THE PROPERTY AND INTERESTS CONVEYED BY IDOLENE HOOPER HALE, FORMERLY SOMETIMES KNOWN
AS IDOLENE HOOPER EWELL, TO SHERIDAN WINFIELD HALE, BY DEED DATED DECEMBER 28, 1949,
RECORDED JANUARY 13, 1950, IN VOLUME 1490 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 442, RECORDS OF
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY.


3. ALL THE PROPERTY AND INTERESTS CONVEYED BY IDOLENE HOOPER HALE EWELL TO EDNA D. CORYELL,
BY DEED DATED SEPTEMBER 8, 1950, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 13, 1950, IN VOLUME 1632 OF OFFICIAL
RECORDS, AT PAGE 114, RECORDS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY.


TRACT THREE:


THE SOUTH ONE-HALF OF SEVEN HILLS RANCH ROAD, FORMERLY WALDEN COMMON, AND THE EASTERN
ONE-HALF OF HOMESTEAD AVENUE, FORMERLY FAIR OAK STREET, LYING BETWEEN THE EASTERLY LINE
PRODUCED NORTHERLY OF LOT 61, AS SAID LOT, COMMON, AND STREET ARE SHOWN ON THE MAP OF
WALDEN, FILED SEPTEMBER 12, 1917, IN BOOK 16 OF MAPS, PAGE 333, AND THE COURSE PRODUCED
WESTERLY SHOWN AS SOUTH 81° 56’ 25” WEST IN THE DEED TO MARIE E. BURDICK, RECORDED AUGUST 2,
1923, BOOK 446 OF DEEDS, PAGE 63.


TRACT FOUR:


LOT B OF THE   MAP OF WALDEN, FILED SEPTEMBER 12, 1917, IN BOOK 16 OF MAPS, PAGE 333.
EXCEPTING THEREFROM:


THAT PORTION LYING NORTHERLY OF THE COURSE SHOWN AS “SOUTH 82° 30’ 30” WEST” IN PARCEL TWO
OF THE DEED TO IDOLENE HOOPER HALE, RECORDED MAY 24, 1926, IN BOOK 133, PAGE 220, OFFICIAL
RECORDS.


NOTE:  TRACTS THREE AND FOUR SHOWN HEREIN HAVE NOT BEEN LEGALLY CREATED IN THE PUBLIC
RECORD AND ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY.
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FOUND 1.5" BRASS DISK IN 8"
DIAMETER CONCRETE CYLINDER
(CONTRA COSTA COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL)
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VALVE, AS NOTED
FIRE HYDRANT
GUY ANCHOR
UTILITY POLE


SUBJECT PROPERTY LINE
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ADJOINING LOT LINE
ADJOINING LOT LINE/CITY AND COUNTY BOUNDARY LINE
CENTERLINE
EASEMENT
FLOW LINE
FENCE
OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE


AC    ASPHALT CONCRETE
APN   ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER
BLDG  BUILDING
DOC   DOCUMENT NUMBER
DWY   DRIVEWAY
EP    EDGE OF PAVEMENT
FL    SURFACE FLOWLINE
FNC   FENCE
G     GAS
GV    GAS VALVE
MON   MONUMENT
OH    OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE
OR    OFFICIAL RECORDS
OVHG  OVERHANG
PG&E  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
SD    STORM DRAIN
SDMH  STORM DRAIN MANHOLE
SSCO  SANITARY SEWER CLEAN OUT
SSMH  SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
TYP   TYPICAL
UB    UTILITY BOX
WM    WATER METER
WV    WATER VALVE
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Thanks
 
Steve Waymire
City Engineer
 

From: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 9:30 PM
To: Steve Mattas <smattas@meyersnave.com>; Dan Buckshi <buckshi@walnut-
creek.org>
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel <EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Steve Waymire
<Waymire@walnut-creek.org>; Heather Ballenger <Ballenger@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Fwd: Question
 
See Eric Zells message below re the Hale property. I let Eric know that we had
briefed both of you today and that we will be doing more research on the 1’ strip
issue and the sale of the property. Tomorrow I will be putting together the
background information on any land use issues and where the developer is in
terms of application processing with the County. Since the developer has already
started meeting with the CC I think it would be better to give the CC as much
information as we have now re the 1’ strip and gather the information on what the
ownership status is afterwards. Thoughts?

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>
Date: April 29, 2020 at 5:25:48 PM PDT
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: RE:  Question

﻿

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with
caution.

Sandy –
 
Hope all is well.  Had our meeting with Cindy.  It went well.  She asked
that we request through you whatever needs to happen to have our
request to purchase the 1’ strip on Kinross placed on the Council’s closed
session for discussion as a property sale.  I’m not sure if we need a
meeting to make this happen or we can just handle through you, but will
follow your guidance.  Cindy suggested that the City Manager and City
Attorney needs to be brought into the effort.  How would you
recommend we proceed?
 
Thanks,

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:smattas@meyersnave.com
mailto:buckshi@walnut-creek.org
mailto:buckshi@walnut-creek.org
mailto:EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org
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
To: Sandra Meyer; eric@zellandassociates.com; "bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com"
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel; Heather Ballenger
Subject: RE: Question
Date: Thursday, April 30, 2020 8:15:07 AM

Eric,
 
Hi Eric,  We are trying to piece together the puzzle here.
 
Can you provide us with the ALTA mapping for the Hale property?
 
Thanks
 
Steve Waymire
City Engineer
 

From: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 9:30 PM
To: Steve Mattas <smattas@meyersnave.com>; Dan Buckshi <buckshi@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel <EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-
creek.org>; Heather Ballenger <Ballenger@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Fwd: Question
 
See Eric Zells message below re the Hale property. I let Eric know that we had briefed both of
you today and that we will be doing more research on the 1’ strip issue and the sale of the
property. Tomorrow I will be putting together the background information on any land use
issues and where the developer is in terms of application processing with the County. Since
the developer has already started meeting with the CC I think it would be better to give the CC
as much information as we have now re the 1’ strip and gather the information on what the
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

Sandy –
 
Hope all is well.  Had our meeting with Cindy.  It went well.  She asked that we request
through you whatever needs to happen to have our request to purchase the 1’ strip on

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
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Kinross placed on the Council’s closed session for discussion as a property sale.  I’m not
sure if we need a meeting to make this happen or we can just handle through you, but
will follow your guidance.  Cindy suggested that the City Manager and City Attorney
needs to be brought into the effort.  How would you recommend we proceed?
 
Thanks,
 
Eric Zell
Zell & Associates
125 Park Place, Suite 200
Point Richmond,  CA  94801
 
(510) 231-4800 – office
(510) 414-8071 – mobile
 
www.zellandassociates.com
 

 

http://www.zellandassociates.com/


From: Eric Zell
To: Sandra Meyer
Subject: RE: Question
Date: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 5:25:35 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandy –
 
Hope all is well.  Had our meeting with Cindy.  It went well.  She asked that we request through you
whatever needs to happen to have our request to purchase the 1’ strip on Kinross placed on the
Council’s closed session for discussion as a property sale.  I’m not sure if we need a meeting to make
this happen or we can just handle through you, but will follow your guidance.  Cindy suggested that
the City Manager and City Attorney needs to be brought into the effort.  How would you
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
Sent: Saturday, April 18, 2020 1:39 PM
To: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>
Subject: RE: Question
 
Hi Eric, Send me an email requesting the meeting to be set up. Address it to me, Ethan Bindernagel,
Planning Manager (bindernagel@walnut-creek.org) and Steve Waymire, City Engineer
(waymire@walnut-creek.org ). I will have my Executive Assistant, Ana Spinola (spinola@walnut-
creek.org) set up the Zoom meeting and ask her to invite the City Manager and the Assistant City
Manager to see if they want to attend. If you have specific dates and times you were looking for, let
me know that in the email so I can have Ana look for time on our calendars that match yours. Our
Planning Tech is doing research on the other items you asked about.
 

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street

mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:bindernagel@walnut-creek.org
mailto:waymire@walnut-creek.org
mailto:spinola@walnut-creek.org
mailto:spinola@walnut-creek.org


Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org
 

From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 5:19 PM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Re: Question
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Absolutely!  Thank you!
 
How should I proceed to set up the call next week to provide the briefing on the Senior
project? Who do you want on the call from city staff? We will need to do as zoom so we can
share a PPT.  

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:17 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿ Mind if I forward what your looking for to my research guy? I will just copy and
paste the info you are looking for into an email to him. 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:04 PM, Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com> wrote:

﻿

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with
caution.

From Wilson Wendt, here is exactly what we are looking for:
 
          1). Top Priority: Minutes and staff report, conditions of
approval, etc. from the Planning Commission Meeting of 2/24/70
when the tentative map was approved;
         2). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, rests, etc. from
the Council meeting in May, 1970 (around May 14) when the
Council approved  Final Map 4006; and

mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
x-apple-data-detectors://2/


         3). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, etc. and a copy
of the Council action on July 20, 1970 when the city accepted
conveyance of the 1’ strip, Lot A on Map 4006, from Equitable
Savings per the Grant Deed dated May 14, 1970.
 

Thanks for all your help!
 
Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 3:40 PM, Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿Are you looking for the CC report and/or Reso dated
July 20, 1970?

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org

-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 3:24 PM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Re: Question

Warning: this message is from an external user and
should be treated with caution.

Map 4006 approved in May, 1970 was entitled “Map
4006 Heather Farms”.  I think the property we are
involved with has been referred to as Seven Hills Ranch.
 The Grant Deed dated May14, 1970 and accepted by
council action on July 20, 1970 was from Equitable
Savings & Loan Association to the City of WC,
conveying the spite strip in fee.

Thanks,
Eric Zell

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org


zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:09 PM, Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:
 
﻿Yes I'm available.  Cell number is 925-899-
1953
 
Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development
Director City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org
 
-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com>
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:07 PM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-
creek.org>; Sandra Meyer AICP
<meyerfam@astound.net>
Subject: Question
 
Warning: this message is from an external
user and should be treated with caution.
 
Sandy-
 
Hope you and the family are well. Are you
available for a quick call? Need to get some
information as part of the due diligence on
the Senior Development project on Hale
Ranch.  I don’t have a mobile number for
you.
 
Thanks,

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:meyerfam@astound.net


Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 
Sent from my iPhone



From: Steve Waymire
To: dick@loewke.com; "Eric Zell"
Cc: Sandra Meyer; bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com; Ethan Bindernagel; Heather Ballenger
Subject: RE: Question
Date: Thursday, April 30, 2020 10:53:58 AM

This is very helpful..  Thanks
 
 

From: dick@loewke.com <dick@loewke.com> 
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2020 9:54 AM
To: 'Eric Zell' <eric@zellandassociates.com>; Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>; bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com; Ethan Bindernagel
<EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Heather Ballenger <Ballenger@walnut-creek.org>
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
mailto:dick@loewke.com
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
To: Wilson Wendt; Soichet, Emmanuelle; Sandra Meyer
Subject: RE: Reimbursement Agreement - Hale Property Spieker.pdf
Date: Friday, May 29, 2020 5:42:55 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Hi Wilson,

Thanks for sending the agreement. We will get it signed on behalf of the City and send you back a copy of the fully
executed agreement.

Steve

-----Original Message-----
From: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 28, 2020 5:27 PM
To: Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com>; Soichet, Emmanuelle <esoichet@meyersnave.com>; Sandra
Meyer <meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Reimbursement Agreement - Hale Property Spieker.pdf

[EXTERNAL E-MAIL]

Executed Reimbursement Agreement.  They will send the $2500 deposit to the City, c/o Sandi.  Call with
questions.   Wilson

MILLER  STARR  REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION This electronic mail message and any
attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and may contain information that is
privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not an intended recipient, or
the employee or agent responsible for delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you received this e-mail
message in error, please immediately notify the sender by replying to this message or by telephone.  Thank you.

mailto:stevem@meyersnave.com
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From: Cathleen Terentieff
To: "Michael Steele"
Cc: Mark Harris; Norman Dyer; Oliver Cheung
Subject: RE: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 1:15:26 PM
Attachments: FW Record Drawings (430 KB).msg

Hi Michael and Mark
Engineering has received two requests for record drawings.
 
I would like to clarify your requests.  Below request is asking for existing storm drain infrastructure
along N San Carlos.  Some of this infrastructure will be private because there is no public ROW until
east of dog park where San Carlos runs north-south, not east-west.  Which leads to second request 
 
Attached email is asking for record drawings for all utilities for the areas in blue which amount to the
following properties:

·         Seven Hills School (APN 172080005) – located in unincorporated county – City has no record
drawings for development of this property, please contact County.

·         Contra Costa Water District (APNs 144043011 and 144041003) - please contact CCWD for
record drawings

·         Contra Costa Canal (14402C001)  – US Bureau of Reclamation property – contact CCWD for
record drawings

·         City property (APNs 144043003, 144043005,144043008, 144043010, 144050019,
144043009, 144041002)

 
Staff will see what information is available for all utility infrastructure on aforementioned City parcels
and portion of Contra Costa Canal where City re-constructed a bridge over the canal.  Please confirm
that this approach meets the intent of the two requests.
 
Best Regards,
 
Cathleen Terentieff, P.E. | Senior Engineer | Public Works | City of Walnut Creek
1666 North Main Street | Walnut Creek, CA  94596 | 925.943.5899 xt2241 (o) | 925.256.3550 (f)
 
 
 
From: Michael Steele <msteele@bkf.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 3:37 PM
To: Cathleen Terentieff <terentieff@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Mark Harris <mharris@bkf.com>; Norman Dyer <ndyer@bkf.com>
Subject: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Hi Cathy,
 

mailto:terentieff@walnut-creek.org
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FW: Record Drawings

		From

		dutyengineer

		To

		Cathleen Terentieff

		Recipients

		terentieff@walnut-creek.org



Oliver Cheung





Engineering Technician II





City of Walnut Creek





cheung@walnut-creek.org





From: Mark Harris <mharris@bkf.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 3:24 PM
To: dutyengineer <dutyengineer@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Michael Steele <msteele@bkf.com>
Subject: Record Drawings





Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.





Hello,





I hope this finds you well.





I am working on the Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project on Seven Hills Ranch Road and would like to request record drawings for the all utilities in the surrounding area (see the vicinity map attached). We recently received comments requesting specifics on the connections into the existing infrastructure. Some general information was provided to us previously but lacked detailed information about inverts, pipe sizes, materials etc. Can you assist in providing this information for all utilities in the area shown on the vicinity map? 





Thanks in advance.





MARK HARRIS





Project Engineer





BKF ENGINEERS Delivering Inspired Infrastructure





1646 N. California Blvd., Suite 400, Walnut Creek, CA 94596





d 925.940.2290 mharris@bkf.com BKF.com





  _____  



We all need to do our part to reduce the spread of COVID-19 in our communities. Our top priority at BKF is the health and safety of our staff and we have successfully transitioned all of our employees to a remote work environment. Additionally, our robust infrastructure allows us to keep our projects moving forward and to continue being responsive to our work, our deadlines, and our clients. 
We remain available to you via email, phone, and virtual meetings during our normal business hours. 





  _____  




Confidentiality Notice: This email (including any attachment) is intended only for the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are not authorized to intercept, read, print, retain, copy, forward, or disseminate this communication. If you have received this communication in error, please reply to the sender or call 650-482-6300, and then please delete this message from your inbox as well as any copies. Thank you, BKF Engineers 2020
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We are working on the Spieker CCRC project at Seven Hills Ranch and I’m reaching out to see if we
can get additional information on the City’s storm drain infrastructure.
 
Per comment 15.d.ii, the area currently draining to North San Carlos will need to drain to an
approved point of discharge.  The information we have about existing infrastructure there is spotty,
so I am hoping you can help us find all existing information to see what our point of discharge
options are.  From there we can discuss with the City if the alternatives are acceptable.
 
I assume you are the person to be working with on this since your name was on the City’s letter, so
please let me know if there is another person I should be reaching out to for this.
 
MICHAEL STEELE, PE, LEED AP
Project Manager
BKF ENGINEERS      Delivering Inspired Infrastructure
1646 N. California Blvd, Suite 400, Walnut Creek, CA 94596
d 925.940.2257  m 925.922.5438  msteele@bkf.com    BKF.com

 
 
 

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
mailto:msteele@bkf.com
http://www.bkf.com/


From: Michael Steele
To: Cathleen Terentieff
Cc: Mark Harris; Norman Dyer; Oliver Cheung
Subject: RE: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 8:36:08 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Cathy,
 
Thanks for the response. This approach meets the intent of both requests.
 
Our goal is to gather as much information as possible about existing storm drain facilities and have a
conversation with the City about potential points of discharge once we have enough info to provide
alternatives to the level spreader approach.
 
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

 

From: Cathleen Terentieff [mailto:terentieff@walnut-creek.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 1:15 PM
To: Michael Steele <msteele@bkf.com>
Cc: Mark Harris <mharris@bkf.com>; Norman Dyer <ndyer@bkf.com>; Oliver Cheung
<Cheung@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: RE: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)
 
Hi Michael and Mark
Engineering has received two requests for record drawings.
 
I would like to clarify your requests.  Below request is asking for existing storm drain infrastructure
along N San Carlos.  Some of this infrastructure will be private because there is no public ROW until
east of dog park where San Carlos runs north-south, not east-west.  Which leads to second request 
 
Attached email is asking for record drawings for all utilities for the areas in blue which amount to the
following properties:

·         Seven Hills School (APN 172080005) – located in unincorporated county – City has no record
drawings for development of this property, please contact County.

·         Contra Costa Water District (APNs 144043011 and 144041003) - please contact CCWD for
record drawings

·         Contra Costa Canal (14402C001)  – US Bureau of Reclamation property – contact CCWD for
record drawings

·         City property (APNs 144043003, 144043005,144043008, 144043010, 144050019,
144043009, 144041002)

mailto:msteele@bkf.com
mailto:terentieff@walnut-creek.org
mailto:mharris@bkf.com
mailto:ndyer@bkf.com
mailto:Cheung@walnut-creek.org
http://www.bkf.com/
mailto:msteele@bkf.com
http://www.bkf.com/


 
Staff will see what information is available for all utility infrastructure on aforementioned City parcels
and portion of Contra Costa Canal where City re-constructed a bridge over the canal.  Please confirm
that this approach meets the intent of the two requests.
 
Best Regards,
 
Cathleen Terentieff, P.E. | Senior Engineer | Public Works | City of Walnut Creek
1666 North Main Street | Walnut Creek, CA  94596 | 925.943.5899 xt2241 (o) | 925.256.3550 (f)
 
 
 
From: Michael Steele <msteele@bkf.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 3:37 PM
To: Cathleen Terentieff <terentieff@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Mark Harris <mharris@bkf.com>; Norman Dyer <ndyer@bkf.com>
Subject: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Hi Cathy,
 
We are working on the Spieker CCRC project at Seven Hills Ranch and I’m reaching out to see if we
can get additional information on the City’s storm drain infrastructure.
 
Per comment 15.d.ii, the area currently draining to North San Carlos will need to drain to an
approved point of discharge.  The information we have about existing infrastructure there is spotty,
so I am hoping you can help us find all existing information to see what our point of discharge
options are.  From there we can discuss with the City if the alternatives are acceptable.
 
I assume you are the person to be working with on this since your name was on the City’s letter, so
please let me know if there is another person I should be reaching out to for this.
 
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
Cc: Troy Bourne; Eric Zell; Bryan Wenter; Soichet, Emmanuelle; Ethan Bindernagel; Sandi Meyer (meyer@walnut-

creek.org) (meyer@walnut-creek.org)
Subject: RE: Spieker
Date: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 9:51:24 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Wilson,

Without expressing any further opinion on the CEQA issue, I am fine if the word "discretion" is modified to
"choice" in the draft reimbursement agreement.  Please make that edit, include the formal names of the LLCs  and
then have the signed agreement returned to the City with a copy to me. Thanks also for sending the names of the
LLCs.

Steve

-----Original Message-----
From: Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 9:42 AM
To: Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com>
Cc: Troy Bourne <BourneT@spk.com>; Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>; Bryan Wenter
<bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Spieker

[EXTERNAL E-MAIL]

Steve,  if you’re changing the Reimbursement Agreement to get the right entities may I ask one very minor edit. 
I’m still hoping to convince you that no seperate CEQA is needed to accept the offer.  In the 2d Whereas it says
whether to accept the offer is at the discretion of the council.  I agree it’s their sole choice but “discretion” has a
particular meaning in the CEQA context.  Can you change it to “choice”?   I hope to get an OK from my client on
the Agmt. today.    Wilson

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
To: Mattas, Steven
Cc: Emmanuelle Soichet; Sandra Meyer
Subject: Re: City of Walnut Creek Reimbursement Agreement
Date: Thursday, May 28, 2020 2:19:42 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Steve,  I just talked with Troy.  He’s signing the Reimbursement Agmt. as modified and I’ll
forward to you and Sandi.  How should they pay the deposit?   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 26, 2020, at 6:38 PM, Mattas, Steven <stevem@meyersnave.com> wrote:

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
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From: John W. Bennison
To: Justin Wedel; Eric Zell
Subject: Re: Hale Ranch Contact
Date: Thursday, July 9, 2020 12:03:39 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thanks for the connection, Justin.
 
Look forward to connecting, Eric.
 
Best,
John
 
 

 

 John Bennison
   Senior Real Estate Specialist DRE #01793510
   1700 N. Main Street
   Walnut Creek, California 94596
   Direct: (925) 787-6965
   Email: jb@imaginecominghome.com
   Website: http://www.imaginecominghome.com
 
"Remember, a house is not a home until you can imagine living your life under that roof.  Imagine coming home!"
 
 
 
 
From: Justin Wedel <Wedel@walnut-creek.org>
Date: Thursday, July 9, 2020 at 11:24 AM
To: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>
Cc: John Bennison <jb@imaginecominghome.com>
Subject: Hale Ranch Contact
 
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
mailto:jb@imaginecominghome.com
http://www.imaginecominghome.com/

g




JRULRLLIFF





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
Date: Saturday, May 16, 2020 4:49:50 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Bryan and I are available at 2:00 Monday.  Nancy will set up the call Monday morning
and send out call in info.  Wilson

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
mailto:bournet@spk.com
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:dickdick@loewke.com
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
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and
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
Cc: bournet@spk.com; Bryan Wenter; eric@zellandassociates.com; dick@lowke.com; Nancy Troche
Subject: Re: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
Date: Friday, May 15, 2020 5:30:07 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thanks Sandi.  I’ll check with Bryan and get back Monday.  Wilson

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
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 6:15:07 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sure.Sandi.  I’ll check with Bryan.   Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 17, 2020, at 7:09 PM, Sandra Meyer <meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

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
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 6:43:54 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

All work, thanks. 

Sent from my iPhone

On May 18, 2020, at 6:13 AM, Wilson Wendt <wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
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
"eric@zellandassociates.com" <eric@zellandassociates.com>,
"dickdick@loewke.com" <dickdick@loewke.com>, Nancy Troche
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
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-
iManage.FID1021924]
 
Can we move our call to Wednesday or Friday next week? I’ve got a CC
Committee meeting to prepare for on Monday and a CC meeting on
Tuesday evening. I’d also like to have Steve M on the call. Anytime on
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Wednesday after 2:00 or Friday morning from 8:30 – 9:30 or between
11:00 and 1:00.
 

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
Subject: Re: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive) [IWOV-
iManage.FID1021924]
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with
caution.

Sandi,  Bryan and I are available at 2:00 Monday.  Nancy will set up the
call Monday morning and send out call in info.  Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

On May 15, 2020, at 4:40 PM, Sandra Meyer <meyer@walnut-creek.org>
wrote:

I’d be happy to discuss with you and Bryan next week
however I want to point out some statements in the
“Summary Request…” document that are not accurate
(which are highlighted below). Paragraph 4 states:
 

Public Purpose:  The City had to have a public
purpose in acquiring the Right of Way Strip.  That
purpose was to ensure future compliance with a
policy in the then existing General Plan with the
development of the adjoining property in the
unincorporated area of the County of Contra Costa
(the “County Property”). The General Plan policy
involved was contained in the list of Street
Recommendations and Improvements:  “Kinross
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Drive shall not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch
Road.”  The current General Plan, adopted in 1989,
in Policy 4.2 carries forward that direction by
discouraging through traffic on local streets and
collectors that would increase traffic in City
residential neighborhoods.

 
The General Plan policy regarding Kinross Drive was in the
General Plan adopted in 1989, nineteen years after the Final
Map was approved. The General Plan prior to the 1989 plan
was adopted in 1971 (one year after the approval of the
subdivision) but there were no policies in the 1971 General
Plan regarding residential streets. I’m assuming that the
prior General Plan that was adopted in 1964 didn’t have any
policies regarding residential streets either (although I
haven’t found a copy of that plan). The City’s current
General Plan was adopted in April of 2006.
 
I don’t have a copy of the PC resolution that approved the
Tentative Map in May 1970 so I don’t know if there was a
condition to the approval of the Final Map for the
conveyance of the Right of Way Strip, in fee, to the City nor
can I find a copy of the PC staff report that might explain
why the condition was placed.
 
That being said, I’m available Monday from 2 - 3 and on
Tuesday from 2 - 4.
 

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
<bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>; Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com>; dick@lowke.com; Nancy
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

Sandi,  Here are the draft docs we discussed.  Obviously, this
is your call and Steve May have some other way of
terminating the city’s fee interest in the 1’ strip.  I tried to
find the most benign way and Bryan and I would like to talk
with you at your convenience.  If you’ll indicate a time next
week that works for you,  I’ll have my assistant set up a call.  
Wilson

Sent from my iPhone, please excuse typos

Begin forwarded message:

From: Nancy Troche
<nancy.troche@msrlegal.com>
Date: May 15, 2020 at 1:10:57 PM PDT
To: Wilson Wendt
<wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com>
Subject: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate
(Kinross Drive) [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]

Here you go.
 
Nancy Troche | Miller Starr Regalia
1331 North California Boulevard, Fifth Floor, Walnut
Creek, CA 94596
t: 925.935.9400 | d: 925.941.3238 | f: 925.933.4126
nancy.troche@msrlegal.com | www.msrlegal.com
 

<mime-attachment.gif>

MILLER STARR REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of
the addressee(s) named above and may contain information that is privileged,
confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not an
intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering this e-mail
to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you received
this e-mail message in error, please immediately notify the sender by replying to
this message or by telephone. Thank you.
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From: Wilson Wendt
To: Bryan Wenter; Sandra Meyer
Cc: Nancy Troche
Subject: Re: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross Drive)
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 6:57:17 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandi,  Will 3:00 on Wed. 5/20 work for you and Steve?  If so, I’ll ask Nancy to set it up and
send out call in info.   Wilson

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

﻿ Bryan,  How about 3:00 on Wed. 5/20  or 8:30 Friday 5/22?  
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
Subject: RE: Irrevocable Offer to Dedicate (Kinross
Drive) 

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
Date: Thursday, April 30, 2020 12:47:22 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thanks Sandy. Look forward to hearing back.  

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 29, 2020, at 9:19 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿ Steve Waymire, Ethan and I have briefed the CA and the CM today on the
project and 1’ strip of property issue and the fact that you were going to begin
showing the project to the CC. The CA will be looking into the background
information that was sent to us by Bryan Wenter. I’ll let you know what we hear
back from him.

Sent from my iPad

On Apr 29, 2020, at 5:25 PM, Eric Zell
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
 
Hi Eric, Send me an email requesting the meeting to be set up. Address it
to me, Ethan Bindernagel, Planning Manager (bindernagel@walnut-
creek.org) and Steve Waymire, City Engineer (waymire@walnut-creek.org
). I will have my Executive Assistant, Ana Spinola (spinola@walnut-
creek.org) set up the Zoom meeting and ask her to invite the City
Manager and the Assistant City Manager to see if they want to attend. If
you have specific dates and times you were looking for, let me know that
in the email so I can have Ana look for time on our calendars that match
yours. Our Planning Tech is doing research on the other items you asked
about.
 

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
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How should I proceed to set up the call next week to provide the
briefing on the Senior project? Who do you want on the call from city
staff? We will need to do as zoom so we can share a PPT.  

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:17 PM, Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿ Mind if I forward what your looking for to my research
guy? I will just copy and paste the info you are looking
for into an email to him. 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:04 PM, Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com> wrote:

﻿

Warning: this message is from an external user
and should be treated with caution.

From Wilson Wendt, here is exactly what
we are looking for:
 
          1). Top Priority: Minutes and staff
report, conditions of approval, etc. from the
Planning Commission Meeting of 2/24/70
when the tentative map was approved;
         2). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff
reports, rests, etc. from the Council meeting
in May, 1970 (around May 14) when the
Council approved  Final Map 4006; and
         3). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff
reports, etc. and a copy of the Council action
on July 20, 1970 when the city accepted
conveyance of the 1’ strip, Lot A on Map
4006, from Equitable Savings per the Grant
Deed dated May 14, 1970.
 

Thanks for all your help!

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
x-apple-data-detectors://2/


 
Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 3:40 PM,
Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
wrote:

﻿Are you looking for the CC
report and/or Reso dated July
20, 1970?

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic
Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org

-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020
3:24 PM
To: Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Re: Question

Warning: this message is from
an external user and should be
treated with caution.

Map 4006 approved in May,
1970 was entitled “Map 4006
Heather Farms”.  I think the
property we are involved with
has been referred to as Seven
Hills Ranch.  The Grant Deed
dated May14, 1970 and
accepted by council action on
July 20, 1970 was from

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org


Equitable Savings & Loan
Association to the City of WC,
conveying the spite strip in fee.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at
2:09 PM, Sandra
Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-
creek.org> wrote:
 
﻿Yes I'm available.
 Cell number is
925-899-1953
 
Sandra Meyer
Community and
Economic
Development
Director City of
Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main
Street
Walnut Creek, CA
 94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-
creek.org
 
-----Original
Message-----
From: Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com>
Sent: Friday, April
17, 2020 2:07 PM
To: Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-
creek.org>; Sandra
Meyer AICP

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
 
Warning: this
message is from an
external user and
should be treated
with caution.
 
Sandy-
 
Hope you and the
family are well.
Are you available
for a quick call?
Need to get some
information as part
of the due diligence
on the Senior
Development
project on Hale
Ranch.  I don’t
have a mobile
number for you.
 
Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 
Sent from my
iPhone

mailto:meyerfam@astound.net


From: Sandra Meyer
To: Eric Zell
Subject: Re: Question
Date: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 9:18:57 PM

Steve Waymire, Ethan and I have briefed the CA and the CM today on the project and 1’ strip
of property issue and the fact that you were going to begin showing the project to the CC. The
CA will be looking into the background information that was sent to us by Bryan Wenter. I’ll
let you know what we hear back from him.

Sent from my iPad

On Apr 29, 2020, at 5:25 PM, Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> wrote:

﻿
Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandy –
 
Hope all is well.  Had our meeting with Cindy.  It went well.  She asked that we request
through you whatever needs to happen to have our request to purchase the 1’ strip on
Kinross placed on the Council’s closed session for discussion as a property sale.  I’m not
sure if we need a meeting to make this happen or we can just handle through you, but
will follow your guidance.  Cindy suggested that the City Manager and City Attorney
needs to be brought into the effort.  How would you recommend we proceed?
 
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
 
Hi Eric, Send me an email requesting the meeting to be set up. Address it to me, Ethan
Bindernagel, Planning Manager (bindernagel@walnut-creek.org) and Steve Waymire,

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
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City Engineer (waymire@walnut-creek.org ). I will have my Executive Assistant, Ana
Spinola (spinola@walnut-creek.org) set up the Zoom meeting and ask her to invite the
City Manager and the Assistant City Manager to see if they want to attend. If you have
specific dates and times you were looking for, let me know that in the email so I can
have Ana look for time on our calendars that match yours. Our Planning Tech is doing
research on the other items you asked about.
 

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
 
How should I proceed to set up the call next week to provide the briefing on the
Senior project? Who do you want on the call from city staff? We will need to do
as zoom so we can share a PPT.  

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:17 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-
creek.org> wrote:

﻿ Mind if I forward what your looking for to my research guy? I will
just copy and paste the info you are looking for into an email to him. 

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

From Wilson Wendt, here is exactly what we are looking
for:
 
          1). Top Priority: Minutes and staff report,
conditions of approval, etc. from the Planning
Commission Meeting of 2/24/70 when the tentative map
was approved;
         2). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports,
rests, etc. from the Council meeting in May, 1970
(around May 14) when the Council approved  Final Map
4006; and
         3). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, etc.
and a copy of the Council action on July 20, 1970 when
the city accepted conveyance of the 1’ strip, Lot A on
Map 4006, from Equitable Savings per the Grant Deed
dated May 14, 1970.
 

Thanks for all your help!
 
Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Apr 17, 2020, at 3:40 PM, Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿Are you looking for the CC report and/or
Reso dated July 20, 1970?

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

Map 4006 approved in May, 1970 was
entitled “Map 4006 Heather Farms”.  I think
the property we are involved with has been
referred to as Seven Hills Ranch.  The Grant
Deed dated May14, 1970 and accepted by
council action on July 20, 1970 was from
Equitable Savings & Loan Association to
the City of WC, conveying the spite strip in
fee.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:09 PM,
Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
wrote:
 
﻿Yes I'm available.  Cell number
is 925-899-1953
 
Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic
Development Director City of
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
2:07 PM
To: Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org>;
Sandra Meyer AICP
<meyerfam@astound.net>
Subject: Question
 
Warning: this message is from
an external user and should be
treated with caution.
 
Sandy-
 
Hope you and the family are
well. Are you available for a
quick call? Need to get some
information as part of the due
diligence on the Senior
Development project on Hale
Ranch.  I don’t have a mobile
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
To: Steve Waymire
Cc: Sandra Meyer; bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com; Ethan Bindernagel; Heather Ballenger; Richard Loewke
Subject: Re: Question
Date: Thursday, April 30, 2020 9:00:02 AM

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
To: Steve Mattas <smattas@meyersnave.com>; Dan Buckshi <buckshi@walnut-
creek.org>
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel <EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Steve Waymire
<Waymire@walnut-creek.org>; Heather Ballenger <Ballenger@walnut-creek.org>
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
 
Hope all is well.  Had our meeting with Cindy.  It went well.  She asked
that we request through you whatever needs to happen to have our
request to purchase the 1’ strip on Kinross placed on the Council’s closed
session for discussion as a property sale.  I’m not sure if we need a
meeting to make this happen or we can just handle through you, but will
follow your guidance.  Cindy suggested that the City Manager and City
Attorney needs to be brought into the effort.  How would you
recommend we proceed?
 
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
Cc: Mark Harris; Norman Dyer; Cathleen Terentieff
Subject: Re: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)
Date: Wednesday, September 23, 2020 10:22:01 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

?Hi Oliver,

Have you been able to find any record utility information for the parcels owned by the City?

MICHAEL STEELE, PE, LEED AP
Project Manager
BKF ENGINEERS      Delivering Inspired Infrastructure
1646 N California Blvd, Suite 400, Walnut Creek, CA 94596
d 925.940.2257  m 925.922.5438     msteele@bkf.com    
BKF.com<https://t.sidekickopen83.com/s1t/c/5/f18dQhb0S7lC8dDMPbW2n0x6l2B9nMJW7t5XYg1pNd3RW3MP7Wv8pTxSsW3LqXLC56dykjf6v4yjd02?
te=W3R5hFj26QkHmW4mKDsT3XW_lZ4mLXp1&si=6460063017074688&pi=c77bd797-a7f1-4c8b-b394-d7a6c8e5c329>
________________________________
From: Cathleen Terentieff <terentieff@walnut-creek.org>
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 1:15 PM
To: Michael Steele
Cc: Mark Harris; Norman Dyer; Oliver Cheung
Subject: RE: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)

Hi Michael and Mark
Engineering has received two requests for record drawings.

I would like to clarify your requests.  Below request is asking for existing storm drain infrastructure along N San Carlos.  Some of this infrastructure will be
private because there is no public ROW until east of dog park where San Carlos runs north-south, not east-west.  Which leads to second request

Attached email is asking for record drawings for all utilities for the areas in blue which amount to the following properties:

·         Seven Hills School (APN 172080005) - located in unincorporated county - City has no record drawings for development of this property, please
contact County.

·         Contra Costa Water District (APNs 144043011 and 144041003) - please contact CCWD for record drawings

·         Contra Costa Canal (14402C001)  - US Bureau of Reclamation property - contact CCWD for record drawings

·         City property (APNs 144043003, 144043005,144043008, 144043010, 144050019, 144043009, 144041002)

Staff will see what information is available for all utility infrastructure on aforementioned City parcels and portion of Contra Costa Canal where City re-
constructed a bridge over the canal.  Please confirm that this approach meets the intent of the two requests.

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

We are working on the Spieker CCRC project at Seven Hills Ranch and I'm reaching out to see if we can get additional information on the City's storm drain
infrastructure.

Per comment 15.d.ii, the area currently draining to North San Carlos will need to drain to an approved point of discharge.  The information we have about
existing infrastructure there is spotty, so I am hoping you can help us find all existing information to see what our point of discharge options are.  From there
we can discuss with the City if the alternatives are acceptable.

I assume you are the person to be working with on this since your name was on the City's letter, so please let me know if there is another person I should be
reaching out to for this.

MICHAEL STEELE, PE, LEED AP
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Project Manager
BKF ENGINEERS<http://www.bkf.com/>      Delivering Inspired Infrastructure
1646 N. California Blvd, Suite 400, Walnut Creek, CA 94596
d 925.940.2257  m 925.922.5438  msteele@bkf.com<mailto:msteele@bkf.com>    BKF.com<http://www.bkf.com/>

________________________________
We all need to do our part to reduce the spread of COVID-19 in our communities. Our top priority at BKF is the health and safety of our staff and we have
successfully transitioned all of our employees to a remote work environment. Additionally, our robust infrastructure allows us to keep our projects moving
forward and to continue being responsive to our work, our deadlines, and our clients.
We remain available to you via email, phone, and virtual meetings during our normal business hours.
________________________________

Confidentiality Notice: This email (including any attachment) is intended only for the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain
information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are not authorized to
intercept, read, print, retain, copy, forward, or disseminate this communication. If you have received this communication in error, please reply to the sender
or call 650-482-6300, and then please delete this message from your inbox as well as any copies. Thank you, BKF Engineers 2020

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


From: Kevin Wilk
To: Eric Zell
Cc: Troy Bourne; dick@loewke.com
Subject: Re: Spieker Zoom Meeting w/Kevin Wilk, Walnut Creek
Date: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 12:48:01 PM

Hi Eric,

We’re set for Thursday. In light of everything going on in Walnut Creek the past few days, and emergency calls for
city council, let’s try to keep this to 30-45 minutes if we can.

Thanks,

Kevin

> On Jun 2, 2020, at 12:29 PM, Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> wrote:
>
> ﻿

mailto:KWilk@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:BourneT@spk.com
mailto:dick@loewke.com


From: Eric Zell
To: Kevin Wilk
Cc: Troy Bourne; dick@loewke.com
Subject: Re: Spieker Zoom Meeting w/Kevin Wilk, Walnut Creek
Date: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 12:50:32 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Absolutely Kevin!  Sorry for what you guys are dealing with. Appreciate you doing the call.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

> On Jun 2, 2020, at 12:48 PM, Kevin Wilk <KWilk@walnut-creek.org> wrote:
>
> ﻿Hi Eric,
>
> We’re set for Thursday. In light of everything going on in Walnut Creek the past few days, and emergency calls
for city council, let’s try to keep this to 30-45 minutes if we can.
>
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
To: Cristina Coley
Subject: Read: Read: Spieker Zoom with Kevin Wilk, Walnut Creek.
Date: Thursday, December 17, 2020 3:09:06 PM

Your message 
   To: Kevin Wilk
   Subject: Spieker Zoom with Kevin Wilk, Walnut Creek.
   Sent: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 12:00:28 PM (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)
 was read on Tuesday, June 2, 2020 12:15:48 PM (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada).

mailto:KWilk@walnut-creek.org
mailto:cristina@zellandassociates.com


From: Wilson Wendt
To: stevem@meyersnave.com; Emmanuelle Soichet; Sandra Meyer
Subject: Reimbursement Agreement - Hale Property Spieker.pdf
Date: Thursday, May 28, 2020 5:27:26 PM
Attachments: Reimbursement Agreement - Hale Property Spieker.pdf

ATT00001.txt

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Executed Reimbursement Agreement.  They will send the $2500 deposit to the City, c/o Sandi.  Call with
questions.   Wilson

MILLER  STARR  REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and
may contain information that
is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not an intended recipient, or
the employee or agent
responsible for delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of
this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you received this e-mail message in error, please immediately notify the
sender by replying to
this message or by telephone.  Thank you.

mailto:wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com
mailto:stevem@meyersnave.com
mailto:esoichet@meyersnave.com
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
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REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  


BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF WALNUT CREEK, 


SPIEKER SENIOR DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS LLC AND 


SPIEKER REALTY INVESTMENTS, LLC 


 


 


 THIS REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into on this 20th 


day of May, 2020, by and between the City of Walnut Creek, a municipal corporation, (“City”), 


Spieker Senior Development Partners LLC and Spieker Realty Investments, LLC, a private real 


estate investment and development firm (together “Developer”) with respect to the matters 


hereinafter stated.   


  


 WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the City accept an offer of dedication dated 


May 18, 1970 related to Subdivision 4006 in the Heather Farms Area. 


  


 WHEREAS, the Developer understands and agrees that the decision as to whether to 


accept the offer of dedication is the sole choice of the City Council and the City makes no 


representations or guarantees that such authorization (or any future authorization related to 


Developer’s request) will be granted or that consideration of Developer’s request will be added 


to a City Council agenda, whether in closed or open session. 


 


1. Reimbursement.  


 


 Developer agrees to reimburse City for the City for all staff and legal costs the City has 


incurred and will incur to review to review, consider, and potentially take action on Developer’s 


request for the City to accept the May 18, 1970 offer of dedication.   


 


2. Rates. 


 


Charges for staff and legal time spent processing this request will be based on the 


Council-approved fee schedule.   


 


3. Initial Payment to the City. 


 


Developer shall, concurrently with its execution of this Agreement, pay to City a deposit 


in the amount of two thousand and five hundred dollars ($2,500), which will be used by City for 


the initial costs of reviewing the request.   


 


4. Reimbursement Payments Processing Procedures.  


 


City shall submit invoices, not more often than once per month, for any and all costs 


incurred pursuant to this Agreement.  Developer shall have 30 days from the date of invoice to 


make the reimbursement payments to the City.  


 


 


Signatures on the following page 
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Developer: 


Spieker Senior Development Partners LLC 


 


_________________________________ 


By: Troy Bourne, Managing Member 


 


 


Spieker Realty Investments, LLC 


 


 


_________________________________ 


By:  Troy Bourne, Managing Member 


 


 


 


 


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
To: meyer@walnut-creek.org
Subject: Seven Hills Sr. Project
Date: Friday, May 15, 2020 9:41:14 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandy,  Hope you’re well.  I left a VM on your cell regarding the city dealing with the strip of land you own in fee
in the Kinross ROW.  I’m working with Bryan Wenter and Eric Zell on the project.  I have a draft offer of
dedication I’d like to send you along with a Summary “bullet Points” that perhaps we can discuss in a call.  I’m
going to send it to Steve Mattas also but would like to talk with you first.  My cell is (925) 360-5007.   Wilson
Wendt

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


From: Wilson F. Wendt
To: Emmanuelle Soichet
Cc: Karen Wylie; Troy Bourne; Sandra Meyer
Subject: Spieker Realty Investments Billing Address
Date: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 9:59:47 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Emma,  The billing address is:  Spieker Realty Investments, 2 Las Estrellas Loop, Rancho
Mission Viejo CA, 92694, Attn: Karen Wylie, wyliek@reataglen.com.  When you have a
minute to discuss the closed session discussion and the CEQA issue, can you call me at (925)
360-5007?     Wilson

mailto:wilsonwendt@gmail.com
mailto:esoichet@meyersnave.com
mailto:wyliek@reataglen.com
mailto:BourneT@spk.com
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:wyliek@reataglen.com


From: Michael Steele
To: Cathleen Terentieff
Cc: Mark Harris; Norman Dyer
Subject: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001)
Date: Monday, September 14, 2020 3:39:47 PM
Attachments: Walnut Creek Letter 090420.pdf

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



 


1666 North Main Street, Walnut Creek, CA  94596 
tel 925.943.5899   www.ci.walnut-creek.ca.us 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


September 4, 2020 
 
Sean Tully 
Contra Costa County 
Department of Conservation and Development 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez, CA 94553 
 
Delivered via e-mail 
 
Re: Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community Project (GP20-0001) 
  
Dear Mr. Tully: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review the above noted application located within the City of 
Walnut Creek’s Sphere of Influence.  We have a particular interest in this project due to its large 
size and the fact that it is proposed to be accessed via the City’s roadway network, and we 
continue to appreciate your collaborative approach.  Our comments on this proposed project are 
as follows: 
 
Planning/Land Use 


1. The City’s general plan land use classification for the subject property is Single Family 
Low (SFL, 1.1 - 3.0 du/ac), and we acknowledge that the applicant is proposing an 
amendment to the County’s general plan.  As such, special attention should be paid to the 
potential impacts on the City’s municipal services, including roads, parks, and police. 


2. Pursuant to Action 18.5.3 in Chapter 4 of the Walnut Creek General Plan, all utilities will 
need to be placed underground (this will be required by the City for all utilities located in 
within the City of Walnut Creek). 


3. We ask that any impact or development fees collected from this project for the purpose of 
constructing or maintaining parks facilities (such as Quimby Act fees) be passed on to the 
City of Walnut Creek, as there are no County park facilities in the area, and the project’s 
future residents would most likely use nearby City of Walnut Creek park and open space 
facilities (including the adjacent Heather Farm Park). 


4. In light of the size of the project and the site’s proximity to the Contra Costa Canal and 
the Iron Horse Trails, we recommend that the project include secure indoor bicycle 
parking for the project’s employees and residents (in addition to the proposed locker and 
shower facilities for employees), and convenient outdoor bicycle parking for visitors. 







  


5. The project should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections between the Iron Horse 
Trail and the Seven Hills Ranch Road EVA, and between the Contra Costa Canal Trail 
and the N San Carlos Drive EVA. 


6. The CEQA review for this project should analyze the potential aesthetic impacts resulting 
from the proposed three and four-story buildings located atop a prominent hill.  This 
analysis should include multiple photo-simulations illustrating views of the project from 
the surrounding neighborhoods, the Contra Costa Canal Trail, and Heather Farm Park. 


 
Public Works - Traffic Engineering 


7. Provide a VMT analysis to assess CEQA traffic impacts. 


8. Provide a traffic analysis to assess traffic effects, circulation, and safety impacts.   


9. Provide a traffic analysis to support the need for two inbound lanes at the Kinross Drive 
entrance, as this street is currently only one travel lane in each direction. 


10. Special consideration for the circulation of people by active mode, transit, paratransit, 
shuttle, etc. shall be addressed in the traffic analysis. 


11. Sidewalks with a minimum width of six feet shall be provided on both sides of Kinross. 


12. Sidewalks should be provided on both sides of the street along all internal streets to the 
project. 


13. Indicate pedestrian circulation on the site plan (including crosswalks throughout project). 


14. The Seven Hills Ranch Road EVA should appropriately connect to pedestrian facilities 
along Homestead Avenue and Seven Hills Ranch Road 


 
Public Works – Engineering 


15. An Encroachment Permit is required for construction of the improvements in the City’s 
right-of-way, including, but not limited to: utility connections (storm, sewer, water, etc.) 
on Seven Hills Ranch Road and San Carlos Drive, roadway/sidewalk construction for the 
proposed continuation of Kinross Drive and associated grading and drainage, drainage 
discharge for Parcel B.  The Encroachment Permit is also required to address off haul, 
traffic control, etc. located within the City to construct the project. Work in the City’s 
right-of-way is limited to the following hours: 7 a.m. to 6 p.m. Monday through Friday 
with lane closures on Ygnacio Valley Road allowed only between 9 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Truck routes/hours for off-haul and other construction deliveries/activities will require 
City review/approval.  


16. A pavement impact analysis from construction traffic on City roads shall be submitted. 
This analysis shall address impacts from all construction traffic, including but not limited 
to the proposed off-haul of 75,000 cubic yards of soil and other material. 


17. A Site Development Permit is required to address construction of off-site improvements, 
including the proposed continuation of Kinross Drive and roadway and drainage 
improvements associated with the Health Care Center (Parcel B).  


a. As the proposed Kinross Drive extension will not serve any City of Walnut Creek 
residents or businesses, if the City approves access via Kinross Drive the City will 







  


require that the developer enter into a perpetual maintenance agreement for 
maintaining the improvements.  


b. Construction of the proposed roadway will disturb a perennial drainage and as 
such, require that the developer obtain all necessary permits from other regulatory 
agencies including but not limited to the Regional Water Quality Control Board, 
Department of Fish and Wildlife, and Army Corps of Engineers. The State 
Department of Fish and Wildlife may require a Streambed Alteration Agreement 
prior to commencement of any work on the public and/or private storm drainage 
system or change the bed or bank of the creek.  


c. EVA. The Project proposes two fully-gated EVAs, one of which is from the 
Health Care Center parking lot to N San Carlos Drive at the north end of the 
project site. This access point does not directly access public right-of-way.  
Located between the proposed project and City’s public right-of-way lie three 
parcels: a parcel owned by the City of Walnut Creek (APN 144-043-010), an 
Ygnacio Canal Trail parcel owned by the US Bureau of Reclamation (144-02C-
001), and a parcel owned by the Contra Costa Water District (APN 144-041-003). 
City will require dedication of an access easement for benefit of Parcel B over the 
City’s parcel, and improvements to the existing roadway. The proposed project 
will also need approval of similar access easements from the two other property 
owners.  Review by the Central Contra Costa Fire Protection District is required 
to determine if the existing roadway meets their EVA requirements.  


d. Stormwater.  


i. Storm drain infrastructure proposed in the proposed extension of Kinross 
Drive will require review and approval by the City. Runoff from the 
roadway extension shall be treated per Provision C.3 of the MRP.  


ii. Discharge of runoff from Parcel B onto City of Walnut Creek property via 
“level spreaders” is not acceptable.  Runoff from the Project shall be 
conveyed in an adequately designed underground storm drainage system 
to an approved point of discharge in a manner approved by the City 
Engineer. The downstream drainage system shall be analyzed, and 
inadequacies, if any, corrected as determined by the City Engineer.  Post-
project stormwater peak flows shall be metered on the project site to 
match pre-development peak flows for a 10-year storm event. The method 
for metering stormwater flows shall be approved by the City Engineer. 
Additional Contra Costa Water District requirements for ultimate 
discharge to the Contra Costa Canal shall also be met. 


18. A Tree Removal Permit is required for the removal of protected trees located within the 
City as well as a tree protection plan for existing trees to remain that may be impacted by 
the Project (see the tree preservation regulations contained in Title 3, Chapter 8 of the 
Walnut Creek Municipal Code). Please note that the City’s tree preservation regulations 
differs from the County’s.  


19. In support of Tree Removal Permit and Encroachment Permit applications, submit 
revised plans distinctly and accurately showing the boundary between unincorporated 







  


Contra Costa County and the City of Walnut Creek.  The City vs. County right-of-way in 
vicinity of Homestead Ave and Seven Hills Ranch Road is not clearly shown, and the 
location of the 850 Seven Hills Ranch Road property within city limits is not clear. Trees 
appear to be proposed for removal on this property, which is located within city limits, 
and as such, the City’s tree preservation regulations would apply. 


20. Please note on page 7 of the project description, that the nearest BART Station is the 
Walnut Creek BART Station (1.9 miles), not the Pleasant Hill BART Station (2.7 miles). 


 
Police 


21. The proposed project will likely result in a large number of calls for service due to medical 
and other emergencies, and due to its location, it is likely that the Walnut Creek Police 
Department will sometimes be called upon to be the first responder.  Please provide an 
analysis of the impacts of this project to the resources of the City of Walnut Creek’s Police 
Department, paying particular attention to potential requests for mutual aid when the 
Contra Costa County Sherriff’s Office is unable to respond to calls for service in a timely 
manner. 


 
Thank you for considering our comments in your review of this application.  Please don’t hesitate 
to contact me directly if you would like to discuss any aspect of this letter further or if you have 
any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 


 


Andrew M. Smith 
Senior Planner 
(925) 943-5899 x2213 
asmith@walnut-creek.org 


 
Cc: Steve Mattas, City Attorney 
 Claire Lai, Assistant City Attorney 


Teri Killgore, Assistant City Manager 
 Ethan Bindernagel, Planning Manager 
 Smadar Boardman, Traffic Engineer 
 Cathleen Terentieff, Senior Civil Engineer 
 Lt. Holley Connors, Walnut Creek Police Department 
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From: Cristina Coley on behalf of Eric Zell
To: kwilk@walnut-creek.org; Troy Bourne; dick@loewke.com
Subject: Spieker Zoom Meeting w/Kevin Wilk, Walnut Creek
Start: Thursday, June 4, 2020 1:00:00 PM
End: Thursday, June 4, 2020 2:00:00 PM
Location: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83665441741?pwd=NWJ6R2xiRDZ2dmc5SDZSVDFWRXV5dz09

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83665441741?pwd=NWJ6R2xiRDZ2dmc5SDZSVDFWRXV5dz09

 

Meeting ID: 836 6544 1741

Password: 665288

 

One tap mobile

+16699009128,,83665441741#,,1#,665288# US (San Jose)

+13462487799,,83665441741#,,1#,665288# US (Houston)

 

Dial by your location

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown)

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

 

Meeting ID: 836 6544 1741

Password: 665288

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcPbJaWeM4 <https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcPbJaWeM4> 

mailto:cristina@zellandassociates.com
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:kwilk@walnut-creek.org
mailto:BourneT@spk.com
mailto:dick@loewke.com


From: Cristina Coley
To: kwilk@walnut-creek.org
Subject: Spieker Zoom with Kevin Wilk, Walnut Creek.
Date: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 12:00:59 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Good afternoon, Mr. Wilk

Eric Zell has asked me to schedule a Zoom Meeting with you and his clients - Troy Bourne and Dick Loewke,
Spieker.

I will send out a calendar invite confirming Zoom meeting for Thursday, June 4th at 1pm.

Thank you.
   Cristina

Cristina Peña-Coley
Office Manager/Scheduler for Eric Zell
125 Park Place - Suite 200
Point Richmond, CA  94801
(510) 231-4800-business
(510) 231-4855-fax
Website: www.zellandassociates.com

mailto:cristina@zellandassociates.com
mailto:kwilk@walnut-creek.org


From: Nancy Troche
To: Sandra Meyer (meyer@walnut-creek.org); stevem@meyersnave.com; Bryan Wenter; dick@loewke.com; Troy

Bourne; "eric@zellandassociates.com"
Cc: Wilson Wendt
Subject: Summary - Kinross Drive [IWOV-iManage.FID1021924]
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 10:44:18 AM
Attachments: Summary - Request to City to Execute.pdf

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

This email is sent at the request of Wilson F. Wendt.  Any replies may be directed to
wilson.wendt@msrlegal.com.
 
Nancy Troche | Miller Starr Regalia
Legal Assistant to Wilson F. Wendt
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


A. Subdivision 4006, Heather Farms: 


1. Final Map (attached) was approved May 18, 1970 by the Walnut Creek City 
Council and filed with the County Recorder on June 11, 1970.  The Final Map created Lot A, a 
1’ wide by 50’ long strip at the end of Kinross Drive (the “Right of Way Strip”) as shown on Sheet 7.  


2. Tentative Map was approved by the Planning Commission in May 1970.  Staff has 
been unable to locate records of the approval but it seems possible that a condition to the approval 
of the Final Map was the conveyance of the Right of Way Strip, in fee, to the City. 


3. A Grant Deed (attached) was recorded July 24, 1970, conveying the Right of Way 
Strip to the City. That Grant Deed was accepted by action of the City Council on July 20, 1970. 


4. Public Purpose:  The City had to have a public purpose in acquiring the Right of 
Way Strip.  It’s not clear if the General Plan in 1970 had a policy to ensure future compliance with 
a policy prohibiting through street access in the development of the adjoining property in the 
unincorporated area of the County of Contra Costa (the “County Property”). The 1989 General 
Plan contained in the list of Street Recommendations and Improvements:  “Kinross Drive shall 
not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road.”  The current General Plan, adopted in 2006, in 
Policy 4.2 carries forward that direction by discouraging through traffic on local streets and 
collectors that would increase traffic in City residential neighborhoods.  


NOTE:  The City purpose could not have been to control or direct the entitlement 
processing on the County Property (beyond ensuring that the Public Street, Kinross Drive, 
was not connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road). That would have been an invalid and illegal 
public purpose. 


B. Proposed Offer of Dedication: 


1. Completion of Actions Started in 1970:  Since it was never intended by the City to 
retain ownership of the Right of Way Strip, the Offer provides a way to complete that course of 
action. When the conditions are satisfied (a covenant recorded by the owner of the County 
Property, guarantying in perpetuity that Kinross Drive will not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch 
Road), then the City will accept the previously recorded offer and create all of the Kinross Drive 
right of way in the City as a public street. This satisfies the purpose and intent of the City in 
acquiring the Right of Way Strip. 


2. Approval of Development on County Property:  The land use entitlement 
processing will be performed by the County and they will have full and complete discretion to deny 
any project and to fully mitigate all environmental impacts. 


C. No Further CEQA Analysis is Needed for the City to Execute and Record This Offer:  


1. The Offer is part of an ongoing project approved by the City in May and June 1970, 
prior to the enactment of CEQA. Guidelines Section 15621.  Nacimiento Regional Water 
Management Advisory Commission v. County of Monterey (1993) 15 Cal.App.4th 200; 
Environmental Law Fund, Inc. v. Town of Corte Madera (1975) 49 Cal.App.3d 158. 
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2. Execution of the Offer is a ministerial approval exempt pursuant to Guidelines 
Section 15378; Public Resources Code Section 21080(b)(1).  Sierra Club v. County of Sonoma 
(2017) 11 Cal.App.5th 11. The only discretionary action involved in Subdivision 4006 approval 
was the approval of the tentative map by the Planning Commission. The Offer is simply carrying 
out a previously approved condition of approval that remains to be implemented. 


3. Not a Project. Public Resources Code Section 21065 and Guidelines Section 
15378 defines a “project” for which environmental review is required. The execution of the offer 
is, expressly not a project because it cannot directly or indirectly cause a physical change in the 
environment.  Nor is it an essential part of a larger project, the development of the County 
Property. That development will be approved by the County (not the City) and the County retains 
the right and obligation to analyze all impacts of that development and to deny or fully mitigate for 
impacts. All the City is doing is ensuring that when the development of the County Property is 
entitled the General Plan Policy against connecting Kinross Drive to Seven Hills Ranch Road is 
implemented as intended when Subdivision 4006 was approved.  Save Tara v. City of West 
Hollywood (2008) 45 Cal.4th 116; Delaware Tetra Technologies, Inc. v. County of San Bernardino
(2016) 247 Cal.App.4th 352; Saltonstall v. City of Sacramento (2015) 234 Cal.App.4th 549; Cedar 
Fair L.P. v. City of Santa Clara (2011) 194 Cal.App.4th 1150; McCloud Citizens v. McCloud 
Community Services District (2007) 147 Cal.App.4th 181. 
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